Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Gary Marson, Democratic Services Team Leader
Tel: 0208 547 5021/email gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 6 February 2019

Finance and Contracts Committee
Date:

Thursday 14 February 2019

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

The Guildhall, Kingston Upon Thames

Members of the Committee
Councillors Dave Ryder-Mills (Chair), Alison Holt (Vice Chair), Rowena Bass, Mark
Beynon, Liz Green, Jaesung Ha, Jason Hughes, Christine Stuart, Sharron
Falchikov-Sumner, John Sweeney and Sharon Young

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

2

AGENDA
1.

Public Questions

A period of up to 30 minutes for public questions on matters relevant to the Committee’s
remit which are not related to items featured on the agenda. Advance notice of the
questions is preferred but not essential.
2.

Apologies for Absence and Attendance of Substitute Members

3.

Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other non
pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on the agenda.
4.

Corporate Plan

Appendix A

This report summarises the Royal Borough of Kingston’s new Corporate Plan; ‘Making
Kingston Better, Together’ which outlines the Council’s vision, strategic outcomes and key
deliverables over the period 2019 - 2023, supported by a set of performance indicators to
help measure progress
5.

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2022-23 and
Detailed Budget and Council Tax 2019-20

Appendix B

To set out the proposed budget for 2019/20 to 2022/23 and the detailed information
required to enable this Committee to make recommendations to Budget Council on 26
February 2019.
6.

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2018-19 - Month 9

Appendix C

To report the revenue and capital monitoring (forecast outturn) positions for 2018/19 and
note the way in which this will impact on the delivery of the Medium Term Financial Plan.
7.

CIL and S106 Biannual Monitoring Report

Appendix D

To provide an update summarising income and agreements from planning obligations,
Section 106 (S106) and the Community Infrastructure Levies (CIL), entered into during the
period commencing 1 April to 30 September 2018.
8.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chairman

To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstance in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972
9.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph
3.of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

3

10.

Financial Assistance to a Maintained School

To consider financial assistance to a maintained school.

Appendix E
(EXEMPT)

4

Welcome to this meeting.
Notice of Webcast
This meeting is being filmed for live and subsequent recorded broadcast via the Council's
website. The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the
Council. Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, the layout of the room
means that the Council is unable to guarantee a seat/location that is not within the coverage
area (images and sound) of the webcasting equipment.
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or
training purposes.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council.
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

5

More meeting information
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by a minimum of 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough or 9 Councillors. A
Decision Notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with details of
the decisions and the call in period expires 10 working days after the meeting. Decisions are not,
therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny Panel. The
Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that no further action is
necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the
decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the Full Council) with its views and
a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

Finance & Contracts Committee

A1

Appendix A

14 February 2019
Corporate Plan
Report by Director, Communities
Call-in deadline 5pm on 28 February 2019

Purpose
This report summarises the Royal Borough of Kingston’s new Corporate Plan; ‘Making
Kingston Better, Together’ which outlines the council’s vision, strategic outcomes and
key deliverables over the period 2019 - 2023, supported by a set of performance
indicators to help measure progress.
Recommendations that 1.

the Committee endorses the draft Corporate Plan, as set out in Annex 1 to this
report, and recommends final approval at Full Council on 26 February 2019; and

2.

the Director, Communities be authorised to make any final amendments to the draft
ahead of Full Council, in consultation with the Leader of the Council.

Benefits to the Community:
The Corporate Plan is the Council’s most important strategic document that sets out the
vision for the borough and the council, together with the priority outcomes we want to
achieve over the next 4 years. The Plan sets out some of the council’s priority activities
through to 2023, with expected delivery dates and performance targets, so that residents
can hold the council to account.
Key Points
A.

The Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s medium-term vision, outcomes and
priorities and is fundamental in ensuring that the Council manages its business and
resources effectively, with activities aligned to achieving the outcomes in the Plan.

B.

Three Strategic Outcomes have been identified, supported by a number of priorities
and clear actions that will be delivered over the next 4 years. As well as the three
Strategic Outcomes, the Corporate Plan also sets out how the council will change
as an organisation in order to achieve these outcomes.

C.

A set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been developed against each
Strategic Outcome, which will be reported publicly to Council Committees.

D.

Through the development of the Corporate Plan, the Council has consulted with
residents, staff and strategic partners on our vision and strategic outcomes. The
feedback received has been used to shape the final document.

Context
1.

Following the May 2018 local elections, Kingston Council is being led by a new
Liberal Democrat administration with a new officer Senior Leadership Team.

2.

Since then, a clear vision has been developed about the type of Council we want
to be and how we will strive to put the needs of residents and businesses at the

heart of what we do.

A2

3.

To achieve this, we are committed to changing the culture of the organisation
and involving staff in this process. This is a core part of our transformation
enabling us to become a more agile, responsive and forward looking organisation
where everyone knows their roles and responsibilities and staff feel respected
and valued in their job.

4.

In delivering the Corporate Plan, the Council is operating within the context of
significant financial pressure following reductions to the funding previously
received from central Government and increasing demand pressures on local
services, mainly as a result of demographic change.

Proposal
5.

The new Corporate Plan, attached at Annex 1 together with it’s technical
appendix at Annex 2, articulates the vision for the borough and for the Council to
2023, together with the most important Strategic Outcomes the Council will strive
to achieve over the next four years. It also sets out our objective for what we
want the Council to be and how we will change in order to deliver our outcomes.

6.

Against each of our Strategic Outcomes, the Corporate Plan sets out some of our
most important priority activities that we will focus on delivering over the next four
years. These are the key priorities which will help us to achieve our vision and
meet our Strategic Outcomes. Each priority includes an expected delivery date,
so that residents can hold us to account.

7.

The Corporate Plan is not intended to represent everything the council does.
Rather, it is the framework within which we will operate and within which key
decisions around the future of local services and the council’s budget will be
taken.

8.

Underneath the Corporate Plan sit a range of core council strategies for example;
Customer Access Strategy; Digital Strategy; Health & Wellbeing Strategy;
Children & Young People Strategy and each directorate will develop service
priorities and deliverables each year, covering activities not highlighted in the
Corporate Plan.

9.

The Corporate Plan will be kept under review and updated annually in order to
reflect changing priorities and circumstances. Each year, the Council will
produce a Corporate Plan Annual Review which will be reported to this
Committee and to Full Council. The Annual Review will be both retrospective
and forward-looking. It will provide a self-assessment of our performance against
our priority activities and KPIs of the previous year as well as refreshing our
priority activity and KPIs for the year ahead.

Consultation
10.

We have asked residents what they think of the outcomes and priorities set out in
the draft Corporate Plan through a number of ‘Let’s Talk...Priorities’ events held
at community locations in the borough and via our the Council’s online
consultation platform.

11.

114 residents, partners and Councillors attended the events. We had 899 visits
to the online portal (of these 697 visited at least one page, 260 downloaded

A3
documents or watched the recording of the first event, and 85 participated in the
survey).

12.

All Council staff have been asked to provide their thoughts on the plan and how
their work contributes to achieving the outcomes.

13.

In response to the draft, some felt that the priorities were right whilst others felt
that there needed to be more focus on some key areas, such as improvement to
the borough’s physical infrastructure; environmental sustainability; support for
local business; prevention particularly around health; and arts and culture and
how that can help health wellbeing.

14.

The feedback from this engagement has been considered and as appropriate
now reflected in the draft Corporate Plan by either adding to the priorities or
adding deliverables.

Timescale
15.

Following the Committee endorsement, the draft Corporate Plan will then need to
be presented to Full Council on 26th February 2019 for approval and adoption.

16.

A designed document will be launched in March 2019.

Resource Implications
17.

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. There will be
financial implications to deliver the activity and deliverables in the Corporate
Plan. However, the Corporate Plan aligns with the council’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy. Each budget line in the Budget Report is linked to an
outcome/priority of the Corporate Plan helping to define and prioritise the
resources required to deliver through the business planning processes.
Resource requirements to deliver specific items in the Corporate Plan in future
years - where funding is not already baselined - will be considered through the
annual budget setting process in the usual way.

18.

Costs associated with the development of the Corporate Plan - including
community engagement activity, document design and promotion - has been met
through existing resources.

Legal Implications
19.

There are no legal implications associated with this report. The Corporate Plan is
not a legal requirement but is essential in setting out the Council’s overarching
strategic framework and priorities.

Risk Assessment
20.

The risk of not having a Corporate Plan would mean the Council would lack a
clear narrative and vision to bind things together and prevent prioritisation of
activity and effective use of resources

Equalities Impact Assessment
21.

A4

An equality impact assessment summarised that the draft Corporate Plan, priority
activities and key performance indicators are there to ensure that it takes
everyone’s needs into account but ensuring that it meets these needs in
accordance to individuals requirements. The full equality assessment is available
as a background paper.

Health Implications
22.

None. The key priorities in the Corporate Plan will have a positive impact on
health and wellbeing

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
23.

None. The key priorities in the Corporate Plan will have a positive impact on the
environment and air quality

Background papers - held by author
Equalities Impact Assessment
Author of report - Paula Tribe, Corporate Head; Strategy and Engagement
Paula.tribe@kingston.gov.uk .

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT

ANNEX 1

MAKING KINGSTON BETTER, TOGETHER
THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON CORPORATE PLAN 2019 - 2023

CONTENTS:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

INTRODUCTION BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
ABOUT THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON
ABOUT ‘MAKING KINGSTON BETTER, TOGETHER’ - THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON CORPORATE PLAN 2019 - 2023
KINGSTON 2023 - OUR VISION FOR THE BOROUGH AND THE COUNCIL
WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE - OUR STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND PRIORITIES TO 2023
A5

APPENDIX: KINGSTON’S FINANCIAL CHALLENGE
CORPORATE PLAN TECHNICAL ANNEX: DELIVERING OUR VISION AND OUTCOMES - PRIORITY ACTIVITIES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

*FINAL VERSION TO BE DESIGNED

1

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
1. INTRODUCTION BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
I am very proud to live in Kingston Borough and I know most residents feel the same. We are a community and together we look after each other.
Kingston is a great place to live, work, study and visit. We have fantastic heritage and cultural assets; world class education through our schools,
college and university; we’re amongst the safest boroughs in London; we have well-loved parks and outdoor spaces; and exceptional volunteers and
community groups. As a council, we always aim to maintain the best and make improvements where it’s needed - whether that relates to purely
council services or where we work with partners. Our primary aim is always to protect and help those adults and children that need us most. But we
must also get the universal services that everyone uses right, not accepting when things are wrong but learning from mistakes and striving to improve.
We must do all this within ever decreasing budgets, which means making tough but fair decisions.
This Corporate Plan sets out our priorities and is the basis on which we will make decisions. It is drawn from our Liberal Democrat manifesto at the
2018 elections and lays out a path for running the council and working with partners - public, private and voluntary sector - over the next four years. It
sets out timescales and performance data - which will be published every year - so that everyone can track how we are doing. It does not include
everything we do - it is a framework within which we will operate. Underneath will sit detailed action plans to help us achieve our ambitions.
A6

Over the next four years we want to make Kingston even better, together with partners but - most importantly - with residents.
Getting the finances right
The first priority is to move the council onto a secure and sustainable financial footing. Years of Government austerity mean that the council is facing
significant financial challenges. In 2010, the council received £66m from Government. By 2018 that had been cut to zero. In addition, demand for
services - particularly adults and children’s social care and special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) - is increasing as a consequence of our
growing population, people living longer, and the increasing complexity of care.
As a council, we’re now reliant on locally generated revenue to pay for local services - council tax, business rates, commercial income from property,
and fees and charges. This has meant that, in 2019, we have had to ask residents to pay a little bit more through council tax for the services they, and
others in our community, receive. These are decisions we do not take lightly and we do all we can to create more opportunities to generate income by
being more commercial in our approach and provide value for money.

2

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Democratic, transparent and listening
We want to be known as a council that is an exemplar for community engagement. We are far from that at the moment but in this new era for the
council, we are focusing on strengthening the relationship between the council and the community - residents, businesses, students, voluntary and
community groups. Kingston has a vibrant and engaged voluntary sector which creates opportunities to maximise community participation.
We want to ‘hardwire’ effective engagement into our decision-making - involving residents in the design of local services and the things that affect
them. We will focus on redesigning and transforming services to deliver them differently and efficiently, with a greater emphasis on self-service and
community-based support, whilst not leaving behind those who need more traditional methods. We’ll look to introduce new ways for residents to
participate in decision making, like open democracy platforms and Citizens’ Assemblies.
Looking after elderly, young and people with disabilities
Whilst the majority of Kingston’s residents are able to go about their lives with minimal support from the council, there are other, more vulnerable
residents who need more intensive, targeted support. Nearly 75% of the council’s budget is spent helping children and adults who need us most. It is
through working with service users and carers that we will be able to provide the best care - with quality prevention services, regular care package
reviews and community support. The council fully supports individuals to reach their full potential and enhance their quality of life.
A7

Most residents are in good health but mental health problems can affect everyone and need to be taken more seriously. We have already introduced
Councillor mental health champions on each of our strategic committees and we are part of the London Thrive initiative. We want to go further by
raising awareness, with improved links to arts, combatting loneliness campaigns and helping schools.
A new approach to planning and providing the new homes and infrastructure we need
We have changed the way the council approaches providing new homes and development across the borough, putting the community at the heart of
the process - whether development happens on council-owned sites or through private developers. We are making clear to anyone wishing to build
new homes in Kingston that we expect them to truly involve our communities in co-design and provide a clear focus on the benefits for residents. We
are also robustly challenging the Mayor of London on the high targets for new housing across Kingston borough and ensuring that necessary
infrastructure is also forthcoming.
Our Local Plan, which will be developed over the next two to three years, will be key in making these changes permanent in Kingston. We are also
taking a different approach to providing new homes on the Cambridge Road Estate, which places residents at the heart of the plans. Cambridge Road is
3

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
our biggest regeneration scheme, which plans to deliver nearly 2,000 homes including many more council homes than previously planned. We have
made a promise to listen to those living on the estate and will work with them on how it will be developed. We are committed to holding a resident
ballot on the regeneration plans, which is the first step in making sure that happens.
But growth cannot just be about homes and physical infrastructure - it includes a focus on education, skills and jobs so that residents can benefit from a
growing economy. Growth also creates opportunities to promote arts, leisure, culture and heritage - activities that improve the quality of life for
everyone.
A clean, green and safe borough
Residents rightly expect to live in an attractive, well-maintained borough and we are committed to keeping the streets clean and maintaining our parks
and open spaces. To support this, we have invested in more Community Rangers so we can respond more quickly to local issues. We will also seek to
reduce single use plastics by introducing public water fountains and challenge our contractors when they fall short of the standards we expect. We are
also determined to support residents to recycle more at home and ‘on the go’. Our recycling rate is already one of the highest in London at 49% of
household waste recycled, but working together we can get to over 50%.

Creating a caring community
Sometimes it is not the council that is best placed to help people. We have some wonderful voluntary and community organisations across the borough
- helping our environment; supporting our older residents; keeping young people safe; entertaining us all. We will review our approach to grants and
commissioning so that these organisations that help us meet our priorities are supported to ‘do what they do best’ rather than jumping through hoops.
We want to celebrate our generous volunteers and encourage more local people and businesses to get involved. We will use our Neighbourhood
Managers to help guide organisations who put on wonderful public community events and make the process easier to navigate.

4

A8

Air safe to breathe
We know that residents are concerned about pollution and air quality and this is a priority where we will take action. We will invest in supporting
sustainable transport through the delivery of the £32 million Go Cycle scheme to encourage more people to cycle rather than use motor vehicles. We
will work with the Greater London Authority and private providers to deliver more electric vehicle charging points across the borough; plant 2,000 trees
in our streets and parks; do more to encourage people to stop engine idling; review our parking services and consult on introducing 20mph speed limits
across the borough’s residential roads which is intended to improve safety and traffic flow.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Tough, but fair
We know it is hard for some residents to understand and accept some of the tough decisions we will have to make over the next few years and that we
can’t please everyone all the time. We need to rebuild trust in the council services. We aim to demonstrate openness, honesty, transparency, a
listening approach and true engagement on the services we provide, including admitting mistakes and learning from them. This is a culture change for
many within the council and it will not happen overnight, but we cannot change ‘what’ we do unless we change ‘how’ we do it.
The council will need to make tough but fair decisions over the next few years and we will used the vision and outcomes set out in this Corporate Plan
to guide our approach.

Cllr Liz Green, Liberal Democrat
Leader of Kingston Council

ADD IMAGE
A9
5

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
2. ABOUT THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON
Like the rest of London, Kingston’s population is growing. In 2018 we had 179,600 residents and this is projected to increase to 202,000 by 2030
(+22,400; +12%) and to 228,500 by 2050 (+48,900; +27% against 2018). Kingston is home to a higher proportion of older residents (aged 65+)
compared with London. This age group is projected to grow from 24,300 in 2018 to 32,000 in 2030, an increase of 32%1, whilst the number of young
people (aged 0-19) is set to increase from 43,600 in 2018 to 47,300 over the same period (+8%).
Whilst people living longer is something to celebrate, Kingston’s growing population - particularly the number of younger and older people who tend to
require more social care support - puts increasing pressure on a range of services, particularly social care and housing.
Total population projected to 2050

Self reported health per 100 persons

A10

Source: GLA 2016 Housing led population projections

Source: ONS 2011 Census

Residents of Kingston are generally in good health, with 86% self-reporting their health as being good or better. Like much of the country, obesity
levels are a concern - 53% of the borough’s adults are classed as overweight or obese2. That said, Kingston compares favourably to London and England
on this and against a range of health and lifestyle indicators, including life-expectancy.

1
2

Greater London Authority 2016 Housing-led population projections
Public Health England 2016/17

6

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Kingston ranks as the second least deprived local authority in London and is 143rd out of 152 authorities in England. Nonetheless, there are pockets of
relative deprivation. The Index of Multiple Deprivation ranks every small area in England from 1 (most deprived area) to 32,844 (least deprived area).
Three of Kingston’s 98 small areas - within the Norbiton, Berrylands and Beverly wards - fall within the top 30% for deprivation in the country.
Deprivation score - comparison with London boroughs

A11

Source: DCLG 2015

% of 16-64 year olds economically active

Source: ONS Annual population survey (June 2018)

Kingston’s education outcomes are strong, with the borough consistently ranking among the best local authorities nationally for educational
attainment at both GCSE and A-Level.

7

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
GCSE attainment

Source: DfE 2015/16

A-Level attainment

Source: DfE 2015/16

Total crime rate comparison across London (Sept 2017 - Aug 2018)

A12

Source: data.police.uk

Kingston is amongst the safest boroughs in London, with crime rates - including anti-social behaviour, violence and sexual offences - significantly lower
than the London average.
For more information about the borough visit data.kingston.gov.uk Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) : data.kingston.gov.uk/jsna/
8

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
3. ABOUT ‘MAKING KINGSTON BETTER, TOGETHER’ - THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON CORPORATE PLAN 2019 - 2023
What’s in the Corporate Plan - our visions, strategic outcomes, and priority activities
‘Making Kingston Better, Together’ - the 2019 - 2023 Corporate Plan - is the council’s most important strategic document. It articulates our vision for
the borough and for the council to 2023, together with our most important strategic outcomes that we’ll strive to achieve over the next four years. It
also sets out our objective for what we want the council to be and how we will change in order to deliver our outcomes.
Against each of our strategic outcomes, the Corporate Plan sets out priority activities that we will focus on delivering over the next four years. These
are the key priorities which will help us to achieve our vision. Each priority includes an expected delivery date, so that residents can hold us to account.
The intention of ‘Making Kingston Better, Together’ is not to capture everything we do as a council. It is a high-level strategic document which provides
a framework for the decisions we take - how we prioritise and how we allocate the resources we have available to achieve these priorities.

Through the development of the Corporate Plan, we have consulted with residents, partners and with staff on our vision and strategic outcomes. The
feedback we’ve received has been used to shape the final document.
How we will measure our progress
We will monitor progress in two ways. Firstly, by being clear about our priority activities, when we expect these to be delivered and monitoring our
progress against those delivery plans.
Secondly, through a set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). These are the performance targets we will aim to meet across a range of policy areas.

9

A13

Underneath the Corporate Plan sit a range of core council strategies which provide further detail of our activities in particular service areas, such as our
Customer Access Strategy; Digital Strategy; Health & Well-Being Strategy; Children & Young People Strategy and Economic Growth & Development
Strategy. Each council directorate will also develop a set of priorities each year which they are focused on delivering and which capture other important
activities not set out in the Corporate Plan.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
A number of KPIs have been set against each of our strategic outcomes. These are four year KPIs which set a target of where we want to be by 2023,
and - in most cases - against which progress will be tracked on an annual basis. Our performance against these targets will be reported publicly to
council committees. Although this is a four year Corporate Plan, it is a ‘live’ document which will be updated every year with revised priorities activities
to meet changing needs and updated KPI targets.
Corporate Plan Annual Review
Each year, the Corporate Plan priority activities and KPIs will be reviewed and updated via a Corporate Plan Annual Review. The Annual Review will be
reported to the council’s Finance & Contract Management Committee and to Full Council, alongside the annual budget. The Annual Review will be
both retrospective and forward-looking - it will provide a self-assessment of our performance against our priority activities and KPIs of the previous
year as well as refreshing our priorities and KPIs for the year ahead.

A14
10

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
4. KINGSTON 2023 - OUR VISION FOR THE BOROUGH AND THE COUNCIL
Our vision for the borough
We have an ambitious vision for the Royal Borough of Kingston, which we are determined to work with residents, businesses and local strategic
partners across the public, private and voluntary sectors to achieve. Our vision for the borough is:
Kingston will be a vibrant, diverse and inclusive borough, where residents are active, empowered, engaged and able to remain independent and
resilient.
Our vision for the council

Our vision for the council is:
Kingston Council will be financially and environmentally sustainable, working transparently and collectively in the best interests of Kingston’s
residents, partners and businesses.
In achieving this vision, we will focus on:
Getting the basics right; providing value for money local services; embracing new technology in service design and delivery; and ensuring that
decisions are inclusive and to the benefit of our vibrant and diverse communities.

11

A15

We have a clear vision about the type of council we want to be and the how we will strive to put the needs of residents at the heart of what we do, as
we ‘hardwire’ effective resident engagement and involvement into our decision making. To achieve this, we are committed to changing the culture of
the organisation and involving staff in this process. This is a core part of our transformation as a council, enabling us to become a more agile,
responsive and forward looking organisation where everyone knows their roles and responsibilities and staff feel respected and valued in their job.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
5. WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE: OUR STRATEGIC OUTCOMES AND PRIORITIES TO 2023
Over the next four years to 2023, we will focus on achieving three strategic outcomes which are linked to our vision and set out what we want to
achieve for the borough. Against each strategic outcome, we have set out a number of priority activities that we will focus on delivering in order to
help achieve our vision and our strategic outcomes. These outcomes and priorities don’t aim to capture everything we do - rather, they are intended as
a framework to guide the decisions we take and how we allocate the resources we have available.
STRATEGIC OUTCOMES:

12

A16

A SUSTAINABLE APPROACH TO NEW HOMES, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE WHICH BENEFITS OUR COMMUNITIES, IN A WELL MAINTAINED
BOROUGH
● Work with local residents to bring forward the redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate in Norbiton, increasing the number of social rented
homes and providing new replacement homes, open spaces and new community facilities for existing residents.
● Make effective use of council-owned land to deliver as many truly affordable homes as possible across the borough.
● Work with communities to develop Kingston’s new Local Plan which will guide and manage future development to 2041, ensuring high quality,
good design, supporting infrastructure, and affordable housing.
● Ensure that all development schemes are well designed in character with the area, creating a sense of pride and place.
● Actively manage our property portfolio to drive up value, increase income where desirable and improve services for our residents.
● Make best use of our Housing Revenue Account assets and resources, maximise our income and spending wisely to provide modern, high
quality services and support for our tenants and leaseholders and enable us to develop new council homes.
● Invest in the borough’s essential infrastructure to support our growing population - schools; health, community and leisure facilities; roads and
transport - with developers paying their fair share.
● Make it easier for residents and businesses to reduce, reuse and recycle more and dispose of their waste efficiently; and keep the borough’s
streets clean.
● Protect Kingston's parks, green open spaces, and biodiversity, for current and future generations to enjoy, and for its benefits for our health and
well-being.
● Invest in sustainable transport - including cycling and electric vehicle charging - to reduce reliance on high polluting vehicles to tackle air
pollution, with a fair approach to traffic enforcement designed to keep the borough moving.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
A SAFE BOROUGH WHICH CELEBRATES OUR DIVERSE AND VIBRANT COMMUNITIES, WITH LOCAL PRIORITIES SHAPED THROUGH PARTICIPATORY
DEMOCRACY
● Kingston’s communities are places where residents feel safe and the fear of crime is low, with a zero-tolerance approach to domestic violence
and hate crime and action against anti-social behaviour.
● Review and strengthen the council’s approach to emergency planning and business continuity locally and with other London boroughs as part of
new statutory arrangements to prevent and respond to national, regional and local emergencies.
● People of all ages and backgrounds share our vision for Kingston as a diverse, tolerant and welcoming borough.
● A borough which celebrates culture, heritage and diversity with vibrant community events for local people, businesses and visitors to enjoy.
● Create the environment for thriving local businesses across a range of sectors across the borough.
● Work with local partners and neighbouring boroughs to support people to develop the skills they need to enter employment.
● Review the council’s approach to voluntary and community sector grants and commissioning to focus on improving value for money and the
delivery of our strategic outcomes, with an emphasis on celebrating volunteering.
● Strengthen the role of Neighbourhood Committees to enhance local decision making, with greater flexibility to respond to local issues.
● Maximise civic engagement through participatory democracy projects, including Citizens Assemblies and open democracy platforms.
● Do more to understand views on the borough, the council, and local services, communicate effectively, in plain English and act on feedback.
A17

HEALTHY, INDEPENDENT AND RESILIENT RESIDENTS WITH EFFECTIVE SUPPORT TO THOSE WHO NEED IT MOST
● Children and adult social care services which champion resilience and independence; focus on strengths; and support people of all ages to live
the most happy healthy, independent life possible.
● Effective, targeted support to our most vulnerable residents to enable them to fulfil their potential and improve the quality of their lives
● Helping to provide young people with the best start in life, through effective early years support to those who need it.
● Ensure all children and young people receive a high standard of education locally, with a focus on supporting those with special educational
needs to be educated alongside their peers and in their local school.
● Effective school place planning, ensuring that the borough has enough schools and school places to support a growing population.
● Accessible and integrated health and social care services with, with partners providing effective care and an approach which enables people to
live independently within their local community
● Empowering people to maintain good mental health and well being with access to information, advice and guidance on local activities and
services that will enable them to lead active and healthy lifestyles.
13

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
HOW WE WILL ACHIEVE OUR STRATEGIC OUTCOMES - A CHANGING COUNCIL
In order to achieve our strategic outcomes, the council is going through ambitious change. Not only are we transforming how we deliver services and
striving to engage residents and businesses more effectively, we are also transforming how we operate as an organisation and how we work with our
local partners. It is through this transformation that we will deliver our strategic outcomes, enabling us to become:

14

A18

FINANCIALLY AND ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE, WORKING TRANSPARENTLY AND COLLECTIVELY IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF KINGSTON’S
RESIDENTS, PARTNERS AND BUSINESSES
● Taking responsibility and doing what’s necessary to put the council on a sustainable financial footing.
● Reshaping commissioning and contract management to deliver more effective outcomes using the same or less resources, including through a
corporate framework and approach.
● Develop a framework that maximises social value from all third party relationships to benefit Kingston communities and businesses.
● An approach to organisational development that drives transformation and delivers the culture change we want - ensuring our workforce
reflects our community.
● ‘Hardwire’ effective communications, consultation and engagement into the council’s decision-making, with services which are designed with
residents.
● Improve the way residents can access services by embracing new technology; investing in customer services; and making it easier for residents
to book things, report activities and access services on online, whilst providing alternatives for those unable to do so.
● An open and transparent council, with accessible data and decisions which are subject to public debate and scrutiny.
● Value, respect and reward our staff, listen to their ideas and concerns, provide a ‘golden thread’ on how they are helping us to achieve our
ambitions.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Our commitment to fairness and equality for all residents
The council demonstrates its moral and legal obligations towards fairness and equality to the residents, service users, employees and visitors through
the implementation of Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty in our day to day activities. The Equality Act 2010 strengthens the
discrimination law and introduces the concept of protected characteristics under legislation regardless of: Age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage or civil partnership, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or beliefs, sex and sexual orientation.
Our Corporate Plan is all inclusive and the council is bound by the Public Sector Equality Duty. The General Duty means the council must have due
regard for the need to:
● Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the Act
● Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
● Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

To advance equality of opportunity involves considering the need to remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics, meet the needs of these people and encourage people to participate in public life where participation is low from people within the
protected characteristics.
Fostering good relations involves tackling prejudice and promoting understanding between people who share a protected characteristic and others.

15

A19

Having ‘due regard’ means consciously thinking about these three aims when making decisions. This means that consideration of equality issues must
influence the decisions reached by the public bodies, such as how they act as employers, how policies are developed, evaluated and reviewed, how
services are designed, delivered and evaluated and how services are commissioned and procured from others.

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
APPENDIX: KINGSTON’S FINANCIAL CHALLENGE
Where our money comes from
All councils have faced significant budget cuts from central Government since 2010 but Kingston’s financial situation is particularly challenging. The
revenue grant we used to receive from Government has now gone completely, reduced from £66m in 2010 to zero by 2017/18. In addition, demand
for services - particularly adults and children’s social care - is continuing to increase as a consequence of our growing population, people living longer,
and the increasing complexity of care.
This means that, apart from one-off specific grants received from Government, Kingston is reliant on locally generated revenue to pay for local services
- council tax, a proportion of business rates, commercial income, specific grants and fees and charges. This will require us to look at the level of
contribution residents make to funding local services through the council tax they pay, as well as other opportunities to generate income by being more
commercial and reviewing the charges we apply to discretionary services, with increases likely in order to pay for services we all use and those to
support to our most vulnerable.
RBK’s sources of income £000’s (2018/19)

A20

RBK’s sources of income % (2018/19)

16

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Where we spend it
The vast majority of the council’s net spend (nearly £87m; 65%) goes on our ‘people’ services - children’s services (£32m) and adult social care and
community housing (£55m). Of the rest, we spend £29m through our Corporate and Commercial Directorate which includes some of our biggest
contracts with external providers in relation to services such as waste management, street cleaning, parking, green spaces and facilities management.
The communities budget includes, amongst other things, spending on public health (£10m); highways; environmental health; community safety;
registrars and bereavement services; customer services and ICT. The Growth Directorate spend includes planning, property rates, repairs and
maintenance and for other corporate services, the largest spend is housing benefit (£65m).

A21
17

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Our savings plans - Medium Term Finance Strategy
Councils have a legal duty to set a balanced budget each year. Alongside setting the detail of the council’s budget on an annual basis, Kingston also has
a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which sets our budget planning cycle over a four year period so that we can plan ahead and avoid short-term
decision making. In 2018/19, the council’s budget included savings of £22m. Over the next four years through to 2022/23, the required annual savings
are as follows:
2019/20
£000s
129,998
2,122
3,747
7,182
3,550
-12,099
134,500

2021/22
£000s

134,500
396
3,821
4,135
0
-4,718
138,134

138,134
415
3,891
4,747
0
-1,713
145,474

2022/23
£000s
145,474
0
4,047
4,978
0
-459
154,040

A22

Expenditure:
Base Budget
Adjustments to Base Budget
Inflation
Growth
Contributions to reserves
Savings
Gross Budget requirement

2020/21
£000s

Table showing total budget and savings from 2018/19 to 2022/23

Savings of this scale will require the council to look at every area of the budget and every service to determine where efficiencies can be made and how
services can be delivered differently. The council will need to take some tough decisions to remain financially sustainable over the next few years.
The single biggest financial risk facing our finances is the over-spend in special educational needs services. The council has developed a Recovery Plan
and established an independently chaired Education Commission to explore these issues with all relevant stakeholders and focus on how we get the
best for children and young people from the resources we have.

Meeting the Challenge - Kingston’s MTFS Transformation programme
The financial challenges we face - and the changing expectations of residents - mean that we can’t continue with the status quo. Our focus is on
redesigning and transforming local services to deliver them differently and efficiently, with a greater emphasis - where appropriate - on increased use
of technology to allow people to better self-serve and on community-based support. We recognise that while Kingston has some of the most digitally
18

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
enabled residents in the country not everyone is able to get online, so we will continue to ensure alternative provision for those who can’t access
services digitally.
The scale of the challenge means that the council will not be able to deliver everything we have done before and we will need residents to take on
more responsibility for themselves and their community. Whilst this will create challenges, it can also be an opportunity to build and strengthen our
community working collectively. We will engage, consult and co-design so that we can fully understand what can be changed and celebrate our
community and all it does.
As we confront the challenges ahead, we will work with our local strategic partners across the public, private and voluntary sectors to join up services
through greater co-location and integration, creating better services for residents and generating efficiencies for the council through a more efficient
use of buildings, staff and resources.
Our MTFS Transformation Programme sets the framework through which we are approaching the financial challenge, with a focus on cross-cutting
themes:

Maximising Our Assets

Description
●
●

Maximising Independence

●

●

Digital Transformation

A23

Transformation Theme

●

Maximising income generated and collected from our existing property portfolio and reducing our property related
operating costs through a focused asset management plan.
Ensuring our property estate is used effectively to support the council’s corporate priorities, co-locate services with
partners where appropriate and be more flexible in how and where we work and deliver services from.
Adults - Improving the lives of older people, people with disabilities and also those with mental health needs.
Supporting people to remain independent, or to remain as independent as practicable given their circumstances or
condition. For those people who do need our assistance, to ensure that we get best value for money from the services
we commission to help them do so.
Children - Delivering the best outcomes for children, young people and their families in Kingston. The focus of
transformation effort is on maximising the resilience and independence with which families in Kingston operate by
promoting existing strengths and working as a collective with the council and providing services in borough rather than
rely on more expensive placements away from their families.
Engage, interact and improve the quality of life for Kingston’s residents through digital innovation and better use of
technology, focussing in the short term on improving the way we work using digital technology and delivering a better
website with greater functionality to allow people to access services online.

19

MASTER VERSION - DRAFT
Enterprising Borough

●

Maximising opportunities for commercial approaches throughout the borough

Smarter Commissioning, Better Contracting

●

Ensuring that Kingston is getting the best outcomes when we buy goods and services and that it’s done in the most
efficient, smart way, providing staff with the tools, skills and processes to maximise the outcomes from all our
contracts and partnerships. Shaping and managing markets to get the most out of our commercial approach

Service Transformation

●

Transforming the way we organise and deliver services, focusing on effective outcomes for communities.

Resilient Communities

●

Healthy, resilient and connected communities which help to shape local services.

Every Penny Counts

●

An efficient and well run council which has the tools to deliver effective outcomes, with supports services focussed on
enabling frontline service delivery by adding strategic value and minimising transactional activity. Internal processes
are effective and efficient - digital by design and promoting internal self service.

A24
20

ANNEX 2
CORPORATE PLAN TECHNICAL ANNEX: DELIVERING OUR OUTCOMES - PRIORITY ACTIVITIES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Whilst it is crucial to set an ambitious vision and outcomes for the borough and the council, it is equally important to be clear about what we will do to
deliver them and how we will measure progress. This technical annex sets out some of our priority activities and key performance indicators mapped
against each strategic outcome. It is not intended to cover everything the council does. The technical annex will be reviewed and updated annually.

STRATEGIC OUTCOME: A SUSTAINABLE APPROACH TO NEW HOMES, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE WHICH BENEFITS OUR
COMMUNITIES, IN A WELL MAINTAINED BOROUGH
PRIORITY ACTIVITIES
DELIVERABLE

DELIVERED BY

Work with local residents to bring forward the
redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate,
increasing the number of social rented homes and
providing new replacement homes, open spaces and
new community facilities for existing residents

Work with existing residents, the local community and development partner to bring forward a
comprehensive plan for the Cambridge Road Estate regeneration, with independent advice available to
residents.

December 2019

Hold a fair resident ballot at the Cambridge Road Estate that enshrines best practice techniques and guidance
in engagement and consultation to apply to other RBK major regeneration opportunity sites

December 2019

Make effective use of council-owned land to deliver
as many affordable homes as possible across the
borough.

Undertake feasibility and agree a regeneration programme of RBK owned sites and opportunities with support
of the Mayor to deliver new homes, especially affordable

June 2020

Develop and deliver council affordable homes programme with the support of the Mayor to help meet local
needs.

April 2023

Build 1,000 new homes by 2022

December 2020
(first home)

Work with communities to develop Kingston’s new
Local Plan which will guide and manage future
development to 2041, ensuring high quality, good
design, supporting infrastructure, and affordable
housing.

Wide public engagement in the future growth and development of the borough; Phase 1 issues and options
consultation

December 2019

Adoption of a new Local Plan

March 2022

Ensure that all development schemes are well
designed in their context and the character of the
area, creating a sense of pride and place.

Seek to ensure all new buildings have the highest level of energy efficiency with carbon offsetting during
construction

Ongoing

Design codes prepared alongside the Local Plan

March 2022

A25

PRIORITY

Actively manage our property portfolio to drive up
value, increase income where desirable and improve
services for our residents.

Make best use of our Housing Revenue Account
assets and resources, maximise our income and spend
wisely, to provide modern, high quality services and
support for our tenants and leaseholders and enable
us to develop new council homes.

Protect Kingston's parks, green open spaces, and
biodiversity, for current and future generations to
enjoy, and for its benefits for our health and
well-being.'

May 2021

With public sector partners, identify opportunities where our property and land can be shared and
re-developed to reduce our overheads and improve customer outcomes and services.

Ongoing

Review the council’s operational property estate and its management to reduce costs and ensure that the way
in which it is used supports the council’s priorities. The review will also look at the energy efficiency of
operational assets.

December 2019

Review the community element of the property estate to create a sustainable approach and maximise social
value outcomes.

December 2019

Develop a new HRA Business Plan and Financial Strategy for the Housing Revenue Account which reflects the
recent changes to funding.

December 2019

Design and implement a new asset management strategy which will ensure our existing homes are safely
maintained, improved and developed.

December 2019

Deliver a programme of new council homes supported by GLA grant funding, working in partnership with both
the public and private sector.

March 2023

Develop a new Housing Strategy which sets out the council’s vision, aims and priorities for housing over the
next five years. The Strategy will include all housing in the borough; privately owned housing, council housing,
specialist housing for older people and student accommodation.

March 2020

Provide 1 public drinking fountain in the Ancient Market and 3 more across the borough, and encourage a
culture of refillable bottles, to promote health, reduce litter and cut the use of plastic.

February 2020

Deliver a new ‘Recycling on the Go’ system.

September 2019

Develop, plan and campaign around the council’s commitment to reduce plastic waste.

Dec 2019

Plant 2,000 trees across the borough by 2022, with 500 planted in 2018/19

April 2022

Complete the Parks Improvement Programme, undertaking various activities in parks and open spaces across
the Borough.

March 2021

A26

Make it easier for residents and businesses to reduce,
reuse and recycle more, dispose of their waste
efficiently; and keep the Borough’s streets clean.

Invest in new commercial property and invest in new property projects, to create additional income to support
the regeneration of local areas.

Invest in the borough’s essential infrastructure to
support our growing population - schools; health,
community and leisure facilities; roads and transport with developers paying their fair share.

Invest in sustainable transport - including cycling,
walking and electric vehicle charging points - to
reduce reliance on high polluting vehicles to tackle air
pollution, with a fair approach to traffic enforcement
designed to keep the borough moving.

March 2021

Schemes to improve transport networks delivered as part of the next Local Implementation Programme 3 year
delivery plan 2019 - 2021.

March 2021

Work with health partners to assess demand for GPs, dentists and health facilities.

December 2019

Produced updates to the council’s school place planning strategy - published June 2017 - every 2 years, setting
out progress against delivery and any changes to anticipated demand.

June 2019

Develop a Kingston Leisure Asset Strategy and proposals for the future of council funded leisure centres.

March 2020

Work with partners to develop a new 10-15 year strategy that ensures Kingston town centre resilience and
vitality and delivers a more diverse and sustainable economy

October 2019

Refresh the Kingston Air Quality Action Plan with the community through participatory democracy and
develop a wider Air Quality Strategy which articulates Kingston’s approach to improving air quality.

January 2020

Introduce more than 100 new electric charging points across the borough.

April 2022

Complete the Go Cycle programme to deliver traffic-free cycle routes and a range of complementary measures
to get people cycling, reducing emissions and air pollution, reducing congestion and increasing levels of daily
exercise and activity.

April 2022

Work with Transport for London to encourage the adoption of Eden Street as a ‘Clean Bus Zone’, with only low
emissions buses operating on routes through the street.

September 2020

Increase in the number of publicly available bike parking spaces in the borough.

Ongoing

Increase the number of children receiving bikeability training - 1,400 per annum at levels 1 & 2 (subject to
funding).

Ongoing

Review the council’s approach to managing the borough’s road network to minimise disruption from planned
and reactive road repairs and maintenance, with more effective working with utilities companies.

July 2019

In line with TfL’s Healthy Streets agenda, encourage residents to take advantage of the existing good
opportunities for walking and cycling, while seeking to improve the public transport connections and access to
key centres via sustainable means.

April 2021

Deliver a fair and sustainable parking service and undertake a parking review designed to deliver a parking
policy that promotes environmental sustainability, air quality and fairness.

December 2019

A27

Recommission the Green Spaces Service with a focus on maintaining parks and green spaces as a borough
asset and improving Kingston’s biodiversity.

Develop a new energy strategy aimed at helping residents and businesses to cut their energy bills and reduce
their carbon emissions.

March 2021

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

BASELINE

2018/19 TARGET

2019/20 TARGET

2022/23 TARGET

Total housing units delivered (Target figures set by the Core Strategy 2012. Higher targets
are expected following the adoption of the new London Plan during the period covered by
the Corporate Plan).

502 (2017/18)

643

643

2,572 (4 year total)

Total affordable housing units delivered (Delivery measured against the target set by the
Core Strategy (2012), Policy DM15. Target will be reviewed as part of the development of a
new Local Plan)

37 (2017/18)

133

133

532 (4 year total)

Number of residents engaged in estate regeneration linked to CRE

20

140

800

25% increase

Number of homes delivered as % of number of homes required over rolling 3 year period.

59% (Apr 2018)

45%

75%

Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

48.3%

50%

51%

48.3%

A28

STRATEGIC OUTCOME: A SAFE BOROUGH WHICH CELEBRATES OUR DIVERSE AND VIBRANT COMMUNITIES, WITH LOCAL PRIORITIES
SHAPED THROUGH PARTICIPATORY DEMOCRACY
PRIORITY ACTIVITIES
PRIORITY ACTIVITY
Kingston’s communities are places where residents feel
safe and the fear of crime is low, with a zero-tolerance
approach to domestic abuse and hate crime and action
against anti-social behaviour.

DELIVERABLE

DELIVERED BY

Consult on proposals to introduce 20 mph speed limits on all residential roads across the borough.

December 2019

Protect and support survivors of domestic abuse, including enhancing the provision available for survivors
with complex needs.

March 2020 and
ongoing

Enter into a London Crime Prevention Fund Grant Agreement with the Mayor’s Office of Policing and Crime
for 2019/21 to contribute to funding Safer Kingston priorities.

March 2019

December 2019

Work to strengthen participation in the work of the local Safer Neighbourhood Board

Ongoing

A refreshed Safer Kingston Partnership Plan for 2020/23, approved by Community Engagement Committee
and Full Council, at the same time increasing synergies with the Youth Justice Plan

June 2020

Review and strengthen the council’s approach to
emergency planning and business continuity locally and
with other London boroughs as part of new statutory
arrangements to prevent and respond to national,
regional and local emergencies.

Report to Community Engagement Committee on the outcomes of the Emergency Planning and Business
Continuity Review.

July 2019

Set up an cross-directorate Task & Finish Group to oversee contingency planning for the impacts of Brexit,
liaising with central government, other London boroughs and local strategic partners.

January 2019
(T&FG set up) and
ongoing

People of all ages and backgrounds integrate well and
share our vision for Kingston as a diverse, tolerant and
welcoming borough.

Assess progress against Annual Equality Objectives and Community Cohesion Action Plan and update
annually.

March 2020 and
annually

A borough which celebrates culture, heritage and
diversity with vibrant community events for local
people, businesses and visitors to enjoy.

Work with the VCS to put on an annual event to celebrate Kingston’s volunteers and showcase the benefits
of volunteering.

September 2019

Review and refresh the process for organising community events, to make it more streamlined and easier to
navigate for community groups with support by Neighbourhood and Community Managers.

July 2019

Encourage community schemes such as Kids Play Out.

Ongoing

Successfully deliver the a programme to support the live music scene in Kingston, using funding from the
GLA as part of the London borough of Culture Programme.

March 2020

Develop options for the future refurbishment of Kingston Museum.

December 2019

Review of Kingston library services

March 2020

Consider feasibility of introducing a borough lottery

March 2021

Develop and agree a programme that will support local business to thrive. Which will include:

Sept 2019

A review of the council’s commissioning framework to ensure it maximises support to local business and
enables SMEs to be part of the commissioning process, with support to the Kingston Pound

April 2020

Work with existing council suppliers to ensure they maximise the use of local business in supply chains

April 2020

Create the environment for thriving local businesses
across a range of sectors across the borough.

A29

Review and assess the impact of our multi-agency Knife Crime Plan with partners

June 2020

Delivering flexible and affordable workspace for small business

April 2020

As part of the South London Partnership, identify local skills priorities for Kingston via the SLP Skills &
Employment Board and feed back to the Mayor of London ahead of the devolution of adult skills budgets to
the GLA.

October 2019

Develop options for the future of the Kingston Adult Education Service, designed to support people to
develop the right skills to remain independent and maximise employment opportunities

September 2019

Review the council’s approach to voluntary and
community sector grants and commissioning to focus
on improving value for money and the delivery of our
strategic outcomes, with an emphasis on celebrating
volunteering

Complete a cross-cutting review of the council’s approach to VCS grants and commissioning

December 2019

Develop a ‘Kingston Community Partnership Contract’ which articulates the relationship between RBK and
the VCS.

March 2020

Strengthen the role of Neighbourhood Committees to
enhance local, community-based decision making, with
greater flexibility to respond to local issues.

Complete the Neighbourhoods Review with proposals to strengthen the role of Neighbourhood Committees,
for agreement at Full Council and proposals successfully implemented.

May 2019

Recruit 2 additional Neighbourhood Managers - bringing the total to 4 (one for each Neighbourhood) to
provide greater support to Neighbourhood Committees and key point of contact between the council and
our Neighbourhoods.

February 2019
(complete)

Recruit 4 additional Neighbourhood Rangers - bringing the total to 8 - to respond to local issues raised by
residents.

December 2018
(complete)

Maximise civic engagement through participatory
democracy projects, including Citizens Assemblies and
open democracy platforms.

Establish a Citizen’s Assembly focusing on air quality and producing a Kingston Citizens’ Clean Air Plan.

September 2019

Develop an Open Democracy Programme.

December 2020

Seek to understand views on the borough, the council,
and local services, communicate effectively and in plain
English and act on feedback.

Carry out an annual Residents Survey and publish results on the council’s website.

Annually

Hold Let’s Talk... community engagement themed events at locations across the borough.

Ongoing to March
2023

Update the council website to ensure all public consultations easily accessible.

July 2019 and
ongoing

Work with local partners and neighbouring boroughs to
support people to develop the skills they need to enter
employment.

A30

Look to achieve a social enterprise borough status

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

BASELINE

2018/19 TARGET

2019/20 TARGET

2022/23 TARGET

To be established

To be established

Fire Risk Assessments up to date

100% (2017/18)

100%

100%

100%

Gas Safety Certification up to date

100% (2017/18)

100%

100%

100%

% food business rated 3 or above

75%

75%

75%

75%

Number of residents who volunteer regularly (once a month or more)
OR Resident volunteer registrations

N/A
159 (Q1 2018/19)

N/A
1,000

2,000

Domestic Violence offences

7.5 per 1,000 population
(rolling year Nov 18)

Decreasing trend

Decreasing trend

Decreasing trend

Sexual violence offences

2.1 per 1,000 population
(rolling year Nov 18)

Decreasing trend

Decreasing trend

Decreasing trend

Library visits

558,942 (2017/18)

565,000

570,500

580,137

% of major suppliers’ sub-contracted spend within borough - suppliers with
Kingston postcodes

To be baselined

STRATEGIC OUTCOME: HEALTHY, INDEPENDENT AND RESILIENT RESIDENTS, WITH EFFECTIVE SUPPORT TO THOSE WHO NEED IT
MOST
PRIORITY ACTIVITIES
PRIORITY ACTIVITY

DELIVERABLE

Children and adult social care services which champion
resilience and independence; focus on strengths; and

Deliver a number of change programmes jointly with NHS partners and other stakeholders that progress
integration between health, social care and housing services which bring together initiatives that enable our

DELIVERED BY
Ongoing

A31

% of respondents that say they are concerned about crime (annual residents
survey Q13)

residents to live independent,healthier lives specified in the Health and Social care Plan.
Work with local employers to expand the range of local traineeships and apprenticeships available to young
people - particularly those leaving care or with disabilities - to improve the local post-16 education offer.

September 2019

Effective, targeted support to our most vulnerable
residents to enable them to fulfil their potential and
improve the quality of their lives

Open a new dementia care home, to provide the best possible care for our elderly residents needing this
specialist service.

October 2020

Develop and operate a local residential children’s home to meet the requirements of children and young
people with higher-level care needs.

January 2020

Increase the range of local,supported accommodation to meet the needs of young people who are in care
and leaving care.

October 2019

Prevent homelessness through early intervention and provision of advice on accommodation rights and
housing options

March 2020 and
ongoing

Continue to maintain and develop a multi agency approach to reduce rough sleeping through the provision
of outreach and accommodation services

March 2020 and
ongoing

Maximise residents independence by developing and using new technology enabled care services (TECS)

March 2020 and
ongoing

Helping to provide children with the best start in life,
through effective early years support to those who
need it

Develop the local offer to provide integrated support for young families delivered through centres and
targeted outreach work in local communities.

March 2020

Working with young people to deliver the best services
possible in a clear and joined up way

Review the youth service offer by listening to the views of young people and co-producing services with
them

April 2021

Ensuring all children and young people receive a high
standard of education locally
with a focus on
supporting those with special educational needs to be
educated alongside peers and in local mainstream
schools.

Establish new specialist resource provisions to create more local school places for children with special
educational needs and disabilities.

September 2022

Effective school place planning, ensuring that the
borough has enough schools and school places to
support a growing population.

Consult on proposals to expand Burlington Infant and Burlington Junior Schools from September 2022 and
2025 respectively.

Spring 2019

A32

support people of all ages to live the most happy
healthy, independent live possible

Spring 2019

Refresh the Council’s School Place Planning Strategy.

Spring 2020

Work with the ESFA to enable the opening of GEMS Surbiton Primary school.

September 2021

Work with the ESFA to enable the opening of a special free school (subject to application is approved)

September 2022

Accessible and integrated health and social care
services with, with partners provide effective care and
an approach which enables people to live
independently within their local community

Develop and implement a Digital Inclusion Action Plan to provide support for people to access services
online whilst continuing to offer an offline alternative to those who need it.

December 2019

Work with health partners to produce a Health & Care Plan for Kingston which will also form the basis of the
joint response to the NHS Long Term Plan, focusing on opportunities to improve health, wellbeing and
independence in Kingston.

September 2019

Empowering people to maintain good mental health
and well being with access to information, advice and
guidance on local activities and services that will
enable them to lead active and healthy lifestyles

Recruit at least 20 Time to Change champions to use their experience of mental health problems to change
the way people think and act about mental health.

March 2020

Support at least 10 business in the borough to sign the Time to change Employers Pledge to tackle mental
health stigma in the workplace.

March 2020

Sign up RBK to the Public Health England prevention concordat for better mental health in order to to
create resilient communities, support prevention activity and to prevent mental health problems and
promote good mental health.

March 2020

Support 5 councillors to be mental health champions as part of the mental health foundation mental health
challenge.

March 2020

Deliver Mental Health First Aid training courses for those working with Young People, and for those working
with Adults, developing a train-the-trainer model.

March 2020 and
ongoing

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PERFORMANCE MEASURE
The number of delayed transfer of care from hospital to social care

BASELINE
378 based on 17/18
performance

2018/19 TARGET
183

2019/20 TARGET
Target set nationally
for 19/20

2022/23 TARGET
Target set nationally
by NHS England

A33

Support the Diocese of Southwark’s application to establish a Church of England voluntary-aided secondary
school.

Number of people in care homes aged 65+ exc LD

271 (snapshot 31.3.18)

267

248

Not yet forecast

Adult safeguarding cases closed with risks reduced or removed (%)

17/18 85%

89% to date

91%

Not yet forecast

Percentage of care leavers (19 - 21 year olds) who are in contact with the local
authority and who are engaged in education, training and employment

64% (2017/18)

60%

62%

Not yet forecast

The number of looked after children

128 ( 2017/18)

122 (forecast)

126 (forecast)

Not yet forecast

The % of Looked After Children placed 20+ miles from home

22% (2017/18)

20%

18%

Not yet forecast

Progress scores should be compared to the national average of 0.0. A positive score indicates that pupils make stronger progress from their different starting points than their peers
nationally, whilst a negative value will indicate weaker progress.
+0.7 (2017/18)

+0.8 (0.1 increase)

Not yet forecast

Not yet forecast

The average progress score per pupil in writing (KS2)

-0.3 (2017/18)

0.0 (0.3 increase)

Not yet forecast

Not yet forecast

The average progress score per pupil in mathematics (KS2)

+0.8 (2017/18)

+0.9 (0.1 increase)

Not yet forecast

Not yet forecast

The average progress 8 score per pupil (KS4)

+0.5 (2017/18)

+0.6 (0.1 increase)

Not yet forecast

Not yet forecast

The proportion of schools judged at good or better by Ofsted

94% (2017/18)

98%

Not yet forecast

Not yet forecast

Percentage of statutory EHCPs completed within 20 weeks (excluding exceptions)

75% (2017/18)

75%

80%

Not yet forecast
2020/21 = 85%
2021/22 = 90%

Households living in Temporary Accommodation

709

872

872 why increasing?

N/A

Homelessness Preventions (via housing options)

597 (2017/18)

450

450

N/A

New KPI

6 (3 adults, 3 young)

No of Mental Health First Aid Courses delivered (adults and young people)

-

A34

The average progress score per pupil in reading (KS2)

CHANGING COUNCIL OBJECTIVE: KINGSTON COUNCIL WILL BE FINANCIALLY AND ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE, WORKING
TRANSPARENTLY AND COLLECTIVELY IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF KINGSTON’S RESIDENTS, PARTNERS AND BUSINESSES
PRIORITY ACTIVITIES
PRIORITY ACTIVITY
Taking responsibility and doing what’s necessary to put
the council on a sustainable financial footing

DELIVERABLE

DELIVERED BY
March annually

Carry out a full review of Fees & Charges

March 2020

Completion of organisational restructure at all tiers

April 2019

Develop a Commissioning, Procurement and Contract management framework that ensures consistent best
practice across all council’s commissioning activity, delivers best value and improved outcomes for
Kingston’s communities.

March 2020

Deliver £1.5m savings through our Smartter Commissioning -Better Contracting programme

April 2023

Develop a framework that maximises commercial opportunities for the Council and encourages enterprise
with a programme of activity to deliver new or alternative delivery models

January 2020

Develop a framework that maximises social value from
all third party relationships to benefit Kingston
communities and businesses

Achieve London Living wage Accreditation

September 2019

Ensure social value criteria are part of every commissioning process and that we identify the key outcomes
for RBK - the ‘social value ask’

December 2019

Developing organisational development that drives
transformation and deliver the culture change we
want- ensuring our workforces reflects our community.

Develop a organisational development strategy that provides staff with the tools and support to do their job
and transform services , development programme that nurtures and grows talent and staff engagement
process that is inclusive and empowering

April 2020

‘Hardwiring’ effective communications, consultation
and engagement into the council’s decision-making,
with services which are designed with our residents.

Create a register of local community, residential, business and voluntary groups that will be consulted as of
right on matters of local interest and service provision.

December 2019

Implement a Residents’ Engagement and Consultation Hub (REACH) to serve as a vehicle through which the
council will consult with local interest groups.

April 2020

Reshaping commissioning and contract management to
deliver more effective outcomes using the same or less
resources including a corporate framework and
approach

A35

Set a balanced budget for 2019/20 and sustainable MTFS to 2022/23

Improve the way residents can access services by
embracing new technology; investing in customer
services; and making it easier for residents to book
things, report activities and access services on online,
whilst continuing to provide alternatives for those that
who are unable to do so.

Value, respect and reward our staff, listen to their
ideas and concerns, provide a ‘golden thread’ on how
they are helping us to achieve our ambitious aims.

July 2019

Implement the new Digital Customer platform to improve the ability for people to report faults or issues,
book appointments and pay for things online.

September 2019

Review and refresh the most visited pages on the council’s website to improve clarity of information and
services available and work with services to improve best practice in web design across teams.

July 2019 and
ongoing

Review all support services to ensure they are focussed on enabling frontline service delivery, maximise
digitalisation and transformation.

Rolling
programme

Engaged in the delivery of the Internet of Things pilot as part of the South London Partnership work.

March 2020

Undertake Smart Place projects to look at smart use of technology to include Domestic Violence and Air
Quality.

March 2020

Improve the broadband capacity in the borough though market intervention, social housing fibre, bid for
superfast broadband and maximising wi-fi / small cell / 5G.

March 2021

Review the council’s data centre arrangements to improve resilience and security for the council.

March 2021

Introduce a Scrutiny Panel to empower residents to challenge council decisions.

June
2018
(complete)

Strengthen the council’s approach to performance and risk management and produce quarterly budget,
performance and risk management reports to Committee.

June 2019 and
ongoing

Ensure that the speed and quality of decisions on planning applications protects the council’s right to
determine planning applications.

Ongoing

Improve the quality of Kingston’s Open Data Portal to increase the amount of service and financial data
published to improve transparency of the council and assist resident scrutiny.

March 2020

Agree a mechanism for measuring the employee experience and engagement and building opportunities for
employee input and involvement into the way we work

April 2019

A36

An open and transparent council, with accessible data
and decisions which are subject to public debate and
scrutiny

Develop a Community Engagement Strategy to articulate the council’s vision and approach to community
engagement and some of the practical tools it will use to improve.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PERFORMANCE MEASURE

BASELINE

2018/19 TARGET

2019/20 TARGET

2022/23 TARGET

General Fund Revenue delivered within 1% of budget

-2.74% (2017/18)

+/-1%

+/-1%

% Housing rent arrears collection

4.3% (Mar 2018)

3.6%

3.6% (Mar 2019)

% Commercial rent collection

93.3% (estimate)

n/a

TBC

Council Tax collected (QRC) % Current year

98.5% (2017/18)

98.5%

98.5%

NNDR (business rates) collected (QRC) % Current year

97.5% (2017/18)

97.5%

97.5%

Average general needs void turnaround time (HRA)

23 days (2017/18)

23 days

23 days

% of third party spend with contracted suppliers

61.35% (Q3 18/19)

n/a

70%

80%

% of third party spend with SMEs (against 30% government target)

62.89% (Q3 18/19)

n/a

63.5%

65%

% of third party spend within borough - suppliers with Kingston postcodes

12.02% (Q3 18/19)

n/a

12.5%

20%

Average call waiting times to contact via phone through Customer Contact Centre

Less than 10 mins

Less than 5 mins

Less than 5 mins

Less than 5 mins

Online enquiries received v enquiries via phone

20% online

50% online

50% online

70% online

Complaints & FOI resolved within agreed timescales

50%

70%

80%

95%

Process planning applications for major development within the statutory target, or
any agreed extension

98.2% (Sept 2018)

>80%

>80% * 'subject to
national Gvt change

Process planning applications for non-major development within the statutory target,
or any agreed extension

87.1% (Sept 2017)

>70%

>70%

Secure a 5 year supply of land for housing development

2.9 years (Q2
2018/19)

>5 years

>5 years

Pay gender gap (median hourly rate - a positive value denotes the percentage that
men are paid more than women)

5.2% (Mar 2017)

5%

5%

TBC

A37

5%

+/-1%

Sickness absence (corporate + London average)

Workforce demographics % of top 5% earners:
● Female
●

Disability

●

Ethnicity - BAME

Average age of workforce

6.1 days per employee
(London Median 8.2
2017/18)

6.1 days

6.1 days

6.1 days

● 61.7% (London
median 51%)
● 7.5% (London
median 4%)
● 7.5% (London
median 17%)
45 (London average
46)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

A38

B1

Appendix B

Finance and Contracts Committee
14 February 2019
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2022-23 and Detailed Budget and
Council Tax 2019-20
Report by the Director, Corporate and Commercial
Call-in deadline: N/A

Purpose
To set out the proposed budget for 2019/20 to 2022/23 and the detailed information
required to enable this Committee to make recommendations to Budget Council on 26
February 2019.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Finance
To resolve that -

1. The comments of the Strategic Housing and Planning Committee, Community
Engagement Committee, Children and Adults Care and Education Committee and
Environment and Sustainable Transport Committee be noted;
2. The Director, Corporate and Commercial be authorised to make any necessary
changes to the GLA precept and the Wimbledon and Putney Common
Conservators levy in the Council Tax Calculation in Annex 3 to the Budget Report
Pack prior to submission to Budget Council, once the final decisions have been
confirmed by these bodies;
3. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the budget proposals and Council Tax
for 2019/20 as set out in the Budget Report Pack report and annexes.
4. Council is RECOMMENDED to authorise the relevant officers to take necessary
action to deliver the agreed budget and service changes, including increasing
relevant fees and charges in line with inflation.
5. Council is RECOMMENDED, in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 2003, to note the comments of the Director of Corporate and
Commercial in regard to the robustness of estimates and the level of reserves and
balances as set out in the section “Comments of the Director of Corporate and
Commercial (S151 Officer) ” in paragraphs 25 to 31 of the Budget Report
Pack;
6. Council is RECOMMENDED in accordance with sections 32 to 36 of the Local
Government Act 1992, to calculate the amounts in Annex C to this report
(amended Annex 3 to the Budget Report pack) for the financial year 2019/20.
7. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the new Capital Strategy including the
detailed capital programme for 2019/20 to 2022/23 as set out in Annex 11 to the
Budget Report and the Treasury Strategy including the Annual Investment
Strategy, prudential indicators and the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy
as set out in Annex 12 to the Budget Report.
8. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the pay policy at Annex A to this report

B2
9. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the Schools Budget for 2019-20 in line
with paragraph 17 and Enclosure 1 of Annex B to this report;

10. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the proposals outlined for the Central
School Services Block including the transfer of £27k to the High Needs Block (ref.
paras 26-28 of Annex B to this report);

11. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the proposals outlined for the Early Years
Block, including the increase of the SEN Inclusion Fund to allow for high needs
support for early years children (ref. paras. 29 - 35 of Annex B to this report);

12. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the proposals outlined for the High Needs
Block (ref paras. 36-39 of Annex B to this report)
13. Council is RECOMMENDED to approve the proposals outlined for the Schools
Block (ref. paras 20-25 of Annex B to this report) and the Schools Funding
Formula outlined in Enclosure 2 of Annex B to this report and the Schools
Allocations in Enclosure 3 of Annex B to this report, including a Minimum
Funding Guarantee of -1.5% per pupil (ref. paras 22-23).
Benefits to the Community:
Setting a balanced budget assists in ensuring the Council is financially sustainable and
able to deliver services to the community.

Key Points
A.

A separate document, entitled ‘Budget Report 2019/20 to 2022/23’ has been
published alongside this agenda and has been dispatched as a separate
document to all Members. Members are requested to bring this with them to
the meeting. The references in this report refer to that Budget Report pack unless
otherwise stated in italics. That document comprises the budget proposals for all
service areas.

B.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires Chief Financial Officers to
report to their authorities about the robustness of estimates and the adequacy of
reserves when determining their budget and level of Council Tax. The Budget
Report Pack therefore includes the advice of the Director of Corporate and
Commercial (Section 151 Officer) as set out in paragraphs 25 to 31 of the Budget
Report pack.

C.

This Committee is asked to consider both the budget proposals relating to electoral
services, legal affairs, performance, regulatory services, finance, human resources
and pensions, contracts and commissioning, revenue and benefits, asset
management, cemeteries and crematoria and registration services, being the
services within its remit and the overall draft budget and to make the appropriate
recommendation to the Council.

D.

Any information made available subsequent to this document going to print,
including recommendations from the other Strategic Committees, will be tabled as
late information. This will also include feedback from the consultation meeting with
business ratepayers, scheduled for 7 February 2019.

E.

In relation to the services within the remit of this Committee, Members are asked to
refer in particular to the following items:
1.

Budgetary growth is shown in Annex 5 and includes items 4 and 13 in
relation to the crematorium and coroner costs, item 8 in relation to

B3
Governance and Law, item 9 in relation to payroll costs, item 10 for an
increased contingency, item 11 for future growth where the exact
requirements are unknown, item 22 in relation to the revenue costs of
financing the capital programme

2.

Budget reductions are shown in Annex 6 of the report. These include items
2, 3, 13 and 36, in relation to Healthy & Safe Communities, items 5, 40 and
41 in relation to HR, items 6 and 15 in relation to the finance service, items
7 to 10, 16, 23 to 28, 42 in relation to support and operations (including
revenues and benefits), items 21, 22, 56 and 57 in relation to Governance
and Law, item 18 in relation to senior management arrangements and items
50, 54 and 55 in relations to contracts and commercial.

3.

The Capital Strategy is set out in Annex 11 with the detailed programme
provided in Enclosure 1 including items 15 to 19 which relate to assets and
the General Fund Property programme.

F.

The information in the Budget Report Pack is to enable the Committee to consider
how the budget proposals contribute to delivering an overall balanced budget for
the whole Council, and take a considered view of all relevant factors before Full
Council determines the final budget and Council Tax for 2019/20 on 26 February
2019. In relation to the Committee’s wider responsibilities for the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Strategy, the proposals should be considered as a whole and
alongside the comments of other Strategic Committees.

G.

In relation to the wider remit of this committee in respect of the medium term
financial strategy, Members are asked to refer in particular to:
1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.

Annex 1 to this report sets out a summary of Budget risks.

Growth recommended for approval within the budget is set out in Annex 5.
Annex 6 to the report provides a summary of the budget reductions
(savings) for 2019/20 to 2022/23. The proposed savings total £12.1m in
2019/20.
Annex 7 sets out a summary of proposed budget by service/function.
The Capital Strategy is set out in Annex 11.

The Treasury Management Strategy is included at Annex 12.

H.

The pay policy statement for 20219/20 is attached to this report at Annex A for
consideration and recommendation to Council

I.

The schools budget report to Children’s and Adult’s Care and Education Committee
is included at Annex B to this report for recommendation to Council.

Final Local Government Finance Settlement
1.

The final local government finance settlement for 2019/20 was published on 29
January 2019. There were no changes in the final settlement compared to the
provisional figures included in the budget report pack.

Wimbledon and Putney Commons Conservators Levy
2.

The 2019/20 levy for the Wimbledon and Putney Commons Conservators has
been set at £46,859.91, which works out to an average band D amount of £29.90
for that area.The table below shows the total proposed Council Tax, inclusive of
the GLA amounts and detailed amounts for each band.

B4

Council Tax
Band

Council Tax
RBK

Council tax
GLA

Council Tax most areas of
the Borough

WPCC area
precept

Council Tax WPCC area

£

£

£

£

£

A

1,033.63

213.67

1,247.30

19.93

1,267.23

B

1,205.90

249.29

1,455.19

23.25

1,478.44

C

1,378.17

284.90

1,663.07

26.58

1,689.65

D

1,550.44

320.51

1,870.95

29.90

1,900.85

E

1,894.98

391.73

2,286.71

36.55

2,323.26

F

2,239.52

462.96

2,702.48

43.19

2,745.67

G

2,584.07

534.18

3,118.25

49.83

3,168.08

H

3,100.88

641.02

3,741.90

59.80

3,801.70

Comments from other Strategic Committees
3.

The Strategic Housing and Planning Committee met on 29 January 2019. The
decision notice of that meeting can be found on the Council’s website. The
Committee agreed the rents and service charges in the Housing Revenue
Account, as set out in Annex 10 to the budget report pack. They also
recommended the HRA budget for approval along with the General Fund
revenue and capital budgets within their remit.

4.

The recommendations of the other strategic committees will be tabled as late
information for Finance and Contracts Committee as they are not available at the
time of writing.

Consultations
5.

No specific consultation has been carried out in relation to the budget as a whole
but any necessary consultation will be carried out as part of the detailed
implementation plan for specific proposals. Proposals subject to consultation
prior to implementation are marked as such in the budget report pack.

Timescale
6.

After consideration by this Committee, the Budget will be considered for approval
by Council on 26 February 2019.

Resource Implications
7.

All resource implications are contained within the Budget Report pack.

Legal Implications
8.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance Officer to report to
Council as part of the budget process on the robustness of the estimates and the
adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. The Council is required by the
Local Government Finance Act 1992 to make specific estimates of gross revenue
expenditure and anticipated income leading to the setting of the overall budget
and council tax. The amount of council tax must be sufficient to meet the

B5
Council’s legal and financial commitment, ensure the proper discharge of its
statutory duties and lead to a balanced budget.

9.

The Localism Act 2011 provides for a council tax referendum to be held if an
authority increases its relevant basic amount of council tax in excess of principles
determined by the Secretary of State. The Local Government Finance
Settlement published in December 2018, announced that a referendum must be
held if council tax for general spend is to be increased by 5% or more. Council
tax for general spending requires a referendum if it rises by 3% or more
alongside a maximum 2% social care precept. The setting of the social care
precept must not exceed a rise of 6% over 3 years from 2017/18.

10.

Under section 65 Local Government Finance Act 1992 there is a duty to consult
with representatives of non- domestic ratepayers about the Council’s expenditure
plans.

11.

In considering the budget for 2019/20, Members must consider the Public Sector
Equality Duty under s149 Equality Act 2010. The Council must, when exercising
its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment
and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act and to
advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those who
share a ‘protected characteristic’ under the Act and those who do not share a
protected characteristic. A ‘protected characteristic’ is defined in the Act as age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership are also protected
characteristics for the purposes of the duty to eliminate discrimination. Members
must consider how the decision will contribute to meeting these duties in light of
other relevant circumstances such as economic and practical considerations.

12.

Some of the proposed savings will be subject to separate decision making
processes (either by Officer, Strategic Committee or Council). Some of the
proposed savings require a consultation process to be undertaken and the
product of consultation (together with the equality analysis) must be
conscientiously taken into account in finalising any decisions. The Budget
Report makes it clear that if, as a result of the consultation process there are
changes to proposed savings alternative arrangements will need to be made to
deliver reductions in spend.

Risk Assessment
13.

A financial risk assessment is contained within the Budget Report pack

Equalities Impact Assessment
14.

An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and is disclosed within
the budget report pack.

Health Implications
15.

There are no direct health implications arising from this report. Any health
implications of specific proposals will be considered as part of the detailed
implementation plan of those proposals.

Road Network Implications
16.

There are no direct road network implications arising from this report. Any road
network implications of specific proposals will be considered as part of the
detailed implementation plan of those proposals.

B6

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
17.

There are no direct environmental or air quality implications arising from this
report. Any environmental implications of specific proposals will be considered
as part of the detailed implementation plan of those proposals.

Background papers - None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Rachel Howard, Head of RBK Financial Strategy and Reporting,
Telephone 020 8547 5709, email: rachel.howard@kingston.gov.uk
List of Annexes to this report:
Annex A - Pay Policy
Annex B - Schools Budget Report
Annex C - Amended Annex 3 to Budget Report pack - Statutory Council Tax Calculation

B7

ANNEX A

ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019 -2020
General Principles
In setting pay, remuneration for council staff at all levels needs to be adequate to secure
and retain high-quality employees dedicated to the service of the public, while not being
unnecessarily generous or otherwise excessive or perceived as such. At the same time
there must be sufficient flexibility to cope with a variety of circumstances (foreseeable or
not), such as local or occupation-specific labour market conditions.
As well as affordability, transparency and fairness will be our first principles when setting
pay at all levels and this will be reflected in:
●

‘Clean pay’ (avoidance wherever possible of additions to basic pay)

● Pay rates and terms and conditions are set outside the organisation and the Council
is a signatory to all relevant national agreements.
● Job evaluation used to ensure fairness and equality and Equal Pay Audits carried
out from time to time.
● Performance pay not operated but ability exists to postpone or withhold increments
in the case of poor performance or attendance or to award additional increments or
make one-off, non-consolidated payments (within strict limits) to recognise most
exceptional performance.
● Where a member of staff at any level takes on a role which is incidental to their
substantive role this will not be remunerated separately and will be taken into
account in job evaluation. Conversely, where a member of staff at any level is
required to take on a role which is distinct from their substantive role, this will be
remunerated separately and appropriately (e.g. election duties, Major Incident
Team).
● In general, the Council will not re engage staff who have previously been made
redundant and received their Pension benefits and/or a redundancy payment.
● However, when considering job applications from those made redundant, we will be
mindful of the public interest in re employing them, taking into account the time
which has elapsed, the level which they were employed at, and the level of the
vacancy concerned. The Government is proposing for the recovery of exit payments
in certain circumstances where an employee subsequently takes up work with a
public body, and to cap public sector termination payments at £95,000. At present
this legislation has not been implemented.
● The Council deducts Income Tax at source for all direct employees, and when it
engages contractors/interims it seeks the fullest assurance that their affairs are
properly managed and will ask them to commit to this as part of the contractual
agreement. The Council is taking account of IR35 in it’s employment decisions.

B8
● Staff at any level will not be directly involved in setting their own pay, and, wherever
necessary external sources will be used.

● The Government implemented mandatory gender pay gap reporting requirement for
employers including Local Authorities with 250 or more employees in April 2017.
Public sector organisations are required to report their gender pay gap figures
annually for 31 March each year by the following 31 March and publish the figures
and report on the council website. At 31 March 2017 the gender pay gap was 4.7%
based on mean hourly rates and 5.2% based on median hourly rates.
The report and action plan is published on the following link:
http://data.kingston.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/OD_Gender_Pay_Gap_Re
port_RBK_2018-04-04.pdf
● A two year pay deal was agreed by the NJC/GLPC effective from 1 April 2018. This
pay deal covers most non-teaching staff. As part of this agreement, from 1 April
2019, a new GLPC pay spine will take effect. As a result of the assimilation advice,
some of the current pay grades in the lower portion of the pay spine will require
changes to ensure compliance with equal pay requirements. It is anticipated that a
review of pay and grading will be necessary due to the issues with some grades
and also taking into consideration that the current Pay and Rewards Strategy has
been in operation for nearly fifteen years. It is therefore anticipated that staff will be
assimilated to the new grades as per GLPC advice pending the outcome of the pay
and grading review, which if approved is likely to be implemented from April 2020
onwards.
Application of General Principles to Pay of Chief Officers, Directors and Chief
Executive
The principles above will apply at all levels of the organisation, including the senior
management team. The Council’s Senior Staff Panel, comprised of elected councillors
and reporting to full council, is responsible for appointments and pay and grading matters
relating to the senior management team.
Job evaluation and advice to the Panel on pay structures and scales will be provided
externally by the Local Government Employers and recommended to the Council’s Senior
Staff Panel for approval.
For Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames non school staff the ratio of highest pay to
median pay is approximately 1:5.2 (comparison on basis of full-time equivalents at
December 2018), revised from 1:6 last year.
Low Pay
As a signatory to all national pay agreements applicable, the Council will apply those
agreements to all its staff except where this is prevented by other factors such as a TUPE
transfer. The Council was an early implementer of the Local Government Services’ Single
Status Agreement which did much to correct pay differentials for previously undervalued
occupations and the Council will continue to work within the framework of national pay
agreements to improve pay and conditions.

B9
The Authority monitors the number of non-school based staff and the nature of the roles
for those employees whose evaluated grade results in pay based on a spine point below
the current London Living Wage (currently £10.55 per hour). The Council introduced the
London Living Wage for staff outside schools from 1 April 2016. Affected staff receive an
additional payment to bring their hourly earnings up to the London Living Wage level.

Review of Policy
This policy was first published in 2012. It will be reviewed and re-published annually.

B10

ANNEX B
Children’s and Adults’ Care and Education Committee
7 February 2019
Schools’ Budget Estimates and Schools’ Funding Formula
Report by the Director of Children’s Services
Call-in deadline 5pm on Thursday 21 February 2019 (ten working days after the meeting)
Purpose
To recommend the Schools Budget for 2019/20.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services and Portfolio Holder
for Finance
To Recommend Finance and Contracts Committee to recommend to Council  that -

the Schools Budget for 2019-20 be approved in line with paragraph 17 and Enclosure 1
of this report;

1.
2.



the proposals outlined for the Central School Services Block be approved including the
transfer of £27k to the High Needs Block (ref. paras 26-28);


3.

the proposals outlined for the Early Years Block be approved, including the increase of
the SEN Inclusion Fund to allow for high needs support for early years children (ref.
paras. 29 - 35);

4.

the proposals outlined for the High Needs Block be approved (ref paras. 36-39)

5.

the proposals outlined for the Schools Block (ref. paras 20-25) and the Schools Funding
Formula outlined in Enclosure 2 and the Schools Allocations in Enclosure 3 be
approved, including a Minimum Funding Guarantee of -1.5% per pupil (ref. paras
22-23).

Benefits to the Community:
The aim of the proposals is to recommend a DSG funded education budget for 2019/20.

Key Points
A.

The Borough has been allocated £139.371m in Dedicated Schools Grant for 2019/20.
This provides an overall increase in funding for 2019/20 of £663k (+0.5%).

B.

The Borough is facing a significant amount of financial pressure on services for high
needs education. A cumulative overspend of up to £12m is anticipated at 31st March
2019. A draft three year transformation plan has been developed to bring annual
spending back in line with Government funding through the DSG by 2021/22 whilst
ensuring that the needs of pupils continue to be met.

D.

The Schools Forum have agreed a Targeted High Needs Fund of £300k for 2019/20
which constitutes a transfer from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block. No further
transfers from the Schools Block are proposed.

E.

A ‘minimum funding guarantee’ of -1.5% is proposed for individual schools’ budgets.
This will ensure that no school loses more than 1.5% on their per pupil funding within
their general schools budget and will ensure that schools who are protected by the

B11

‘minimum funding guarantee’ continue to transition to an allocation based on the standard
local formula.
F.

No change to hourly nursery rates is proposed. The rates would remain at £5.92 for two
year olds and £5.21 for three and four year olds.

G.

A high needs budget of £23m is proposed with the recognition that there remains a
significant budget gap for high needs services and this gap will be addressed through the
SEND Transformation Plan and a further increase in the DSG deficit carried forward at
the end of the financial year.

Context
1.

Education services are principally funded via the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG). The DSG is the main source of income for the schools budget and can only be
used in the provision of education services. The Schools Budget is a ring-fenced
account within the authority’s overall funds and this report sets out the draft budget
and funding formulae for 2019/20. The Schools Budget has been prepared in
accordance with the national funding arrangements effective for 2019/20.

2.

The Schools Budget funds individual schools’ delegated budgets and certain defined
activities for the direct benefit of pupils or schools, including special educational needs
and compliance with free child care entitlements for children under the age of five.

3.

The Schools Forum, as the body representing the interests of schools and academies,
is consulted regarding formula changes and has the power to agree to proposals made
by the authority regarding certain issues. The Schools Forum met in September and
November and noted the changes regarding schools funding 2019/20 and approved
central and de-delegated budgets.

4.

The Kingston DSG fund has had an in year overspend for the past four years and is
now in a cumulative deficit position. An anticipated deficit of up to £12m is expected at
the end of the 2018/19 financial year.

5.

The current level of spending on services funded by the high needs education
element of the DSG is running at an unaffordable level and a draft Transformation Plan
is discussed in detail on this agenda. The draft Transformation Plan aims to bring
spending into line with the grant allocation by 2021 and a draft of the plan has been
submitted to the Department for Education to provide assurance that the Council is
developing plans to prevent this deficit escalating to unaffordable levels. The Council
has undertaken a detailed consultation with all stakeholders on the proposals in the
plan and the results of the consultation are discussed elsewhere on this agenda.

- Overview of Education Funding
6.

On 1 April 2018 Government began the transition towards a new national funding
formula for education funding. The national funding formula will be fully implemented
from 1 April 2021 and 2019/20 will be a transitional year where local authorities and
schools will transition towards the new formula. It will still be for the Council in
consultation with Schools Forum to set a local formula to distribute this funding
between schools in 2019/20 and 2020/21.

7.

DSG funding is split into four blocks; the Schools Block, the High Needs Block; Early
Years Block and the Central School Services Block (explained in paragraphs 8-13

B12

overleaf). Although the overall DSG is ring fenced, the blocks themselves are not,
although the amount that can be transferred is limited under the funding scheme.
8.

The Schools Block can be broken down into two areas:
●

Schools Block (delegated) – This funding is delegated to schools. At least
80% of the funding must be allocated through pupil led factors. These must
include a basic entitlement funded through the age weighted pupil unit (AWPU)
and a factor for deprivation. It can also include optional factors. In Kingston this
includes a prior attainment factor to provide additional funding for schools with a
high incidence of low level special educational needs, a lump sum for each
school, funding for English as an additional language, a mobility rate for pupils
that join after the October census date, additional funding where schools deliver
services on multiple sites and funding for business rates.
There is a mandatory mechanism within the funding formula to limit variations in
the amount of funding received by schools from this block. The Minimum
Funding Guarantee (MFG) limits the maximum reduction to minus 1.5% on per
pupil funding and is funded by applying a cap to schools that may have received
more funding. The schools block operational guidance clearly outlines that the
cap may only be applied to offset the MFG and must be applied consistently for
all schools. The MFG can be set at a level between plus 0.5% and minus 1.5%.

●

Schools Block (growth fund) – This funding is top sliced from the DSG to
support growth in pre-16 pupil numbers to meet basic need and to support
additional classes needed to meet the infant class size regulations.

9.

The High Needs Block supports provision for pupils with special educational needs or
disabilities (early years to 25) and provision for children who receive an alternative
provision because they are unable to attend school.

10.

At a very summary level, maintained schools, academies and free schools receive
£10k per place (£4k from Schools Block and £6k from High Needs Block) where the
place is within a SEN Unit, Specialist Resourced Provision or Pupil Referral Unit (core
funding). The Local Authority agrees a separate per pupil funding for children under
the age of five. Where the cost of making the special educational provision required by
a pupil cannot be met from the place funding, the local authority provides additional
‘top up’ funding.

11.

The High Needs block also pays for placement in independent schools and colleges
and non maintained special schools where these placements have been named in a
pupils’ EHCP, usually because the pupil cannot be supported in a maintained school
or academy or mainstream college.

12.

The Early Years Block supports pupils under the age of five in maintained schools,
academies, relevant pupils in private, voluntary and independent providers and under
fives in alternative provision.

13.

The Central Schools Services Block provides funding for central functions and for
services that schools wish to procure centrally from the Council. Examples include the
Admissions Service and a contribution towards the Emotional Health Service.

B13

- Government Education Funding Settlement 2019/20
14.

The draft 2019/20 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocation for Kingston is
£139.371m compared to £138.707m in 2018/19. The 2018/19 allocation included a
£3m one off advance from Government in response to the high needs education
pressures being faced by the Council. In total this provides increased funding of
£664k (+0.5%) including the one off amount and £3,664k (+2.7%) when excluding the
one off amount. The grant amounts include funding for both maintained schools,
academies and high needs funding paid out directly by the Education Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA). A proportion of the Schools Block and High Needs Block relating to
academies and non-maintained special schools will be recouped by the ESFA for
payment directly to these organisations. The following table breaks down the grant
allocation by block:

15.

The key changes in the Government allocation result from:
● increased pupil numbers and increased rate of funding for mainstream schools
● one-off high needs advance received in 2018/19
● increased high needs funding in Government Grant allocation.

- Pupil Premium
16.

The pupil premium is additional funding for publicly funded schools to raise the
attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities and to close the gaps between them
and their peers. Pupil Premium for maintained schools remains a separate grant from
the DSG. The allocations for 2019/20 will be calculated using the Spring 2018 schools
and alternative provision censuses. The rates are as follows:

B14

PROPOSALS
- Application of the DSG in 2019/20
17.

The proposed application of the 2019/20 DSG is summarised in the following table. As
DSG allocations to each block are not ring-fenced, the totals for each block do not
need to match the DSG block provisions set out above.

18.

The DSG Operational Guidance allows certain amounts to be transferred between
blocks to fund specific pressures and allow for local circumstances. Transfers from the
Schools Block and Early Years Block must be approved by Schools Forum. Transfers
from the High Needs Block and Central Schools Services Block must be done in
consultation with Schools Forum but are ultimately a Council decision. If the Local
Authority wishes to overrule a Schools Forum decision or disregard a funding formula
rule then an application can be submitted to the Secretary of State.

19.

At its meeting in November 2018, the Schools Forum agreed to allocate £300k from
the Schools Block to create a ‘targeted high needs fund’. This money will be used to
provide additional funding to schools who support a disproportionate number of pupils
requiring SEN support.

- Schools Block
20.

The funding formula for the Schools Block has been discussed by the Schools Forum
and this formula has now been rerun with the actual data from the October 2018
census. The Schools block budget is proposed at £102.624m as follows:

21.

Details of the proposed 2019/20 formula are shown in Enclosure 2 and details of the
allocations to individual schools are shown in Enclosure 3.

22.

A Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) of between 0.5% and -1.5% can be applied in
2019/20 under the funding formula rules. Where a school’s funding under the local
funding formula reduces from 2018/19 to 2019/20, the MFG limits the loss in per pupil
funding. This protection is funded by capping the amount other schools can gain. The
MFG is intended to be a time limited mechanism to move a school towards being

B15

23.

funded in line with the formula allocation. Six schools qualify for MFG funding in
2019/20.
The Committee is recommended to approve a Minimum Funding Guarantee of -1.5%.
This will ensure that no school’s per pupil funding element reduces by more than 1.5%
and that schools accessing this transition funding continue to move towards being
funded on the same basis as those schools who are not accessing this transition
funding. Schools funding the MFG at this level will have their increases per pupil
capped at 4.16% per pupil.

24.

The Schools Block allocation must fund the Growth Fund which supports the funding
of new classes which are necessary from September 2019. These additional classes
are not funded through the DSG allocation from Government until the following April.
The Growth Fund also provides protection for schools who support the borough in
providing bulge classes where there is a shortfall of pupil places. The Growth Fund is
estimated at a value of £268k.

25.

Schools Forum have also agreed to fund a number of items centrally. This money
forms part of schools’ budgets and is de-delegated to the Council for the provision of
the agreed services. The budgets were agreed by Schools Forum in September and
November 2018 as follows:

- Central School Services Block
26.

In September and November 2018 the Schools Forum were consulted on and agreed
a number of items to be funded from the Central School Services Block. These items
are detailed in the table below and it is recommended that any unallocated funds are
transferred to the High Needs Block to be spent on high needs early intervention
services.

B16

27.

Following discussions with Schools Forum, regarding the funding of historic borrowing
that enabled capital expenditure on St Philip’s School between 2005 and 2011 it has
been proposed that the Council will match fund this amount by allowing £141k
investment from the general fund to provide pump priming for high needs priorities.

28.

The Committee are asked to approve the application of the Central Schools Services
Block.

- Early Years Block
29.

The Early Years Block comprises funding for the free early education entitlements for
three and four year-olds and disadvantaged two year olds, supplementary funding for
maintained nursery schools; the early years Pupil Premium, the Disability Access
Fund, the SEN Inclusion Fund and centrally provided early years services.

30.

The Government allocation is £12.49m for 2019/20. Government are providing the
same hourly rate of funding as in 2018/19 with rates frozen at £5.92 per hour for two
year olds and £5.77 per hour for three and four year olds. The Local Authority must
set local hourly rates that provide for central services that are needed in the local area.
At least 95% of the Government funding for three and four year olds must be
passported directly to providers.

31.

The following table breaks down the proposed budget for 2019/20 by the various
elements:

B17

32.

The proposed hourly rates for the 2019/20 financial year are detailed in the table
below. The rates passport 100% of Government funding for two year olds to providers
and over 97% of funding for three and four year olds to providers. These rates have
been discussed with and are also recommended by Schools Forum.

33.

The recommended rates provide for an increase in the SEN Inclusion Fund from
£278,000 to £545,965 in 2019/20. From 2017/18 all boroughs were required to set a
budget aside to provide for a SEN Inclusion Fund. The DfE believe such a structure
will support local authorities to work with individual providers to resource support for
the needs of individual children with SEN. It will also enable local authorities to carry
out an effective strategic role in their local area to increase the capacity of their
childcare market so that it appropriately supports and develops children with SEN in
the early years. The DfE believe that an aspect of the local funding system dedicated
to supporting children with SEN will help local authorities in developing their plans for
strategically commissioning services as required under the Children and Families Act
2014.

34.

This year an additional SEN budget is recommended to pay for high needs places and
support packages for nought to five year olds that were previously funded from the
high needs block. This forms part of the SEND Transformation Plan and will ensure
that these services for young children can continue next year. The impact of using
early years funding for these services will be that less funding is available to be
passported through the standard hourly rate to providers. The money will instead be
given to providers, who support children with SEND under the age of five, in the form
of specialist nursery places and support packages. The rate will essentially need to
be maintained at £5.21 , 2018/19 levels, rather than increased to £5.35 per hour. The

B18

level of SEN inclusion fund has been discussed with Schools Forum and is
recommended as follows:

35.

The rates allow for the following central services to be funded from the Early Years
Block. These items were discussed and agreed by Schools Forum in January 2019:

- High Needs Block
36.

37.

38.

Financial pressure has continued on the demand-led SEN budgets within the High
Needs Block. Last year, the budget report and associated documents outlined a
number of actions that would be implemented to control the position in 2018/19.
These actions have been partially successful in that the in-year overspend would be
worse if they were not implemented but the actions have not gone far enough in
bringing the fund back to an in year balanced position.
The proposals outlined in this report allow for a DSG funded high needs budget of
£23m. If no further action is taken there is an estimated gap of between £5m and £7m
next year. This level of overspend is not affordable for the Council and therefore a
draft three year Transformation Plan has been developed to ensure that the Council
can continue to meet the needs of children and young people whilst working towards a
position where the cost of supporting children and young people who need additional
support with their education is brought more into line with the amount of money that is
provided by Government for these services.
The draft Transformation Plan aims to ensure that education services are brought in
line with Government funding levels by 2021/22. It is anticipated that the Council will
need to spend more than £23m next year to ensure that whilst transformation plans
are introduced the Council continues to provide appropriate support to pupils and their
families. The draft Transformation Plan was presented to this Committee in December
2018 and is also discussed in detail elsewhere on this agenda. The detail of the plan
is being discussed on an ongoing basis and will be reviewed periodically to ensure that
it reflects the latest information in terms of what is achievable and also the desired
approach of partners and stakeholders. The plan will be considered again by all
relevant partners at the Health and Wellbeing Board in February 2019.

B19

39.

A high needs budget of £23m is proposed with the recognition that there remains a
significant budget gap for high needs services and this gap will be addressed through
the SEND Transformation Plan and a further increase in the DSG deficit carried
forward at the end of the financial year. The demand-led SEN budgets will continue to
be closely monitored throughout 2019/20 and regular updates provided to both
Schools Forum and the Council in terms of progress against the Transformation Plan
and associated expenditure levels.

Consultations
40.

All primary and secondary schools (academies and maintained) were consulted on the
local formula. The Schools Forum considered these proposals at their meetings in
September and November 2018.

41.

A series of meetings have been held with schools to explore the options that are
available to bring spending more in line with the grant allocation. Attendees have
included head teachers, Councillors, Council officers and AfC officers.

42.

The Council has undertaken a detailed consultation on the Transformation Plan with all
relevant stakeholders. The results of this consultation are discussed elsewhere on this
agenda.

Timescale
43.

The Council are required to set a DSG budget as part of its annual budget setting
process and in advance of the Council Tax being set in March 2019.

Resource Implications
44.

The full Dedicated Schools Grant allocation will be used for Schools related services
in line with the guidance.

45.

It is untenable to continue the current level of expenditure within the High Needs Block
compared to the resources available from the Dedicated Schools Grant . This
situation is unsustainable for both complying with DfE requirements for the DSG and
for the wider Council’s financial health.
Legal Implications
46.

The Council is required by the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 to set a
non-schools education budget and a schools budget each year and to provide
delegated funding to schools from the schools budget in accordance with the Schools
and Early Years Finance Regulations and DfE Guidance. The Dedicated Schools
Grant is a specific grant under the Education Act 2002 provided to support the schools
budget. The DSG is the main source of income for the schools budget. The Council is
required to comply with the published conditions of grant for the DSG. Relevant
conditions and Operational Guidance are referenced in the report above.

47.

Education funded by the High Needs Block of the DSG is provided to meet the
Council’s statutory duties under section 19 of the Education Act 1996 to provide
education for pupils needing alternative education and the Council’s statutory duties
under the Children and Families Act 2014 to meet the needs of pupils and young
people up to the age of 25 with special educational needs.

B20

48.

The Council has duties under the Children and Families Act to make special
educational provision for children and young people whose needs cannot reasonably
met from the resources normally available to schools and post-16 institutions. If
provision from the Council may be necessary, the Council is required to carry out an
assessment of a child or young person’s education health and care needs. Following
assessment, the Council must make and maintain an education health and care plan
for the child or young person if it is necessary for the local authority to make special
educational provision for them.

49.

Where the Council maintains an EHCP for a child or young person, it must arrange
and fund the special educational provision set out in the Plan and must name an
appropriate school or college placement. Placement decisions must be made with
regard to parental preference and the efficient use of resources as well as avoiding
unreasonable public expenditure. Where an independent or non-maintained school or
college is named in an EHCP, the local authority is under a duty to pay any fees for the
placement. Parents and young persons have the right of appeal to an independent
tribunal if a request for an EHC assessment is refused and about the content of an
EHCP, including the placement named. Decisions about provision to meet special
educational needs under the High Needs Block are therefore based on need and are
subject to independent scrutiny. Any reduction in provision which would mean that the
Council was not able to make a decision based on individual needs or fully provide for
special educational needs as set out in EHCPs is likely to lead to legal challenge.

50.

The overspend on the High Needs Block will need to be addressed in the context of
ensuring that the Council continues to be able meet its statutory duties under the
Children and Families Act 2014. The Council will also need to have regard to its duty
under the Equality Act to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination,
harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act and to advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those who share a ‘protected
characteristic’ under the Act and those who do not share a protected characteristic. A
‘protected characteristic’ is defined in the Act as age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. The
Council must also ensure that its functions are discharged having regard to the need
to safeguard and promote the welfare of children under section 11 of the Children Act
2004.

Risk Assessment
51.

The demand led nature of the high needs spend means that expenditure levels can be
volatile. A single high cost placement can cost in excess of £250k per year. The DSG
budgets are monitored at a detailed placement level to ensure that information for
decision making is accurate and up to date.

52.

The 2019/20 budget setting process for education in Kingston has been complicated
by the significant difference in funding and expenditure levels for Kingston pupils
requiring additional support with their education (high needs). The decisions about
how to prioritise the funding that is available, must be considered alongside the
associated risks of those decisions and impacts on pupils who access all categories
of DSG funding.

B21

Equalities Impact Assessment
53.

An equality assessment is being completed to assess the impact of the proposals in
the Kingston SEND Transformation Plan. This includes the recommendations set
out in this report relating to the schools budget.

Author of the report  - Pauline Maddison, Director of Children’s Services,
pauline.maddison@achievingforchildren.org.uk
Background documents held by Lucy Kourpas, Achieving for Children Director of
Finance, 02084875018, lucy.kourpas@achievingforchildren.org.uk
.
o None other than those referred to in this report

B22

Annex B
Enclosure 1
2019/20 Schools Budget

Block

Schools Block
Central School Services Block

2019/20 Application of
Funding Allocation (£)
102,624,288
1,080,158

High Needs Block

23,175,831

Early Years Block

12,490,352

Total Dedicated Schools Grant

139,370,629

B23
Annex B
Enclosure 2
2019/20 Formula rates

Factor
AWPU AWPU AWPU FSM - Primary
FSM - Secondary
FSM6 - Primary
FSM6 - Secondary
EAL 3 - Primary
EAL 3 - Secondary
Mobility
Prior Attainment - Primary
Prior Attainment - Secondary
Lump Sum
Split Sites
Rates
Exceptional Circumstance4
Total
MFG (recommended)
Capping (%) -1.50% - 1,530- 2.14% - 1,210Minimum Per Pupil Funding
De-delegation
Total

Unit
Primary All Pupils
Key Stage 3 All Pupils
Key Stage 4 All Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Relevant Pupils
Per School
Relevant School
Actual Cost
Relevant School

-1.00% 1.91% -

2018/19
Total
(£000)
38,47921,38514,4187023811,7271,8201,561575794,2942,2508,225851,7165897,7561,3151,315-

-

47597,281-

2018/19
(£ /Unit)
2,843.46
4,050.96
4,619.65
661.66
661.66
812.05
1,180.47
565.49
1,520.77
2,187.55
1,152.93
1701.95

-

2019/20
(£ /Unit)
2,905.294,192.294,752.07893.071,214.03655.60976.49565.491,520.771,924.501,122.191,701.95-

-1.50% 4.16% -

2019/20
Total
(£000)
39,33622,86215,9371,0778591,3211,5341,569568794,4412,3428,225851,92358102,216812812141471101,886-

B24
Annex 3

Indicative school by schools allocations
2019/20
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames - Schools
indicative allocation

School Name

TOTAL

Minimum Per Pupil Funding

Number
on Roll

Post Dedelegation
Allocation

Per Pupil
allocation

(£)

(£)

Percentage
change per
pupil

2018/19 BUDGET COMPARATIVE
-1% Minimum Funding Guarantee
(PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVE)

-1.5% Minimum Funding Guarantee (RECOMMENED)

Lump Sum

Business
Rates
(NDR)

DeDelegation

Per Pupil

(£)

(£)

(£)

(£)

- 22,347-

101,886,331

Burlington Junior School

476

1,967,210

4,174.60

3.16%

175,000

45,765

-19,902

3,710.81

Burlington Infant and Nursery School

359

1,515,170

4,262.34

0.80%

175,000

52,818

-15,010

3,627.75

Coombe Hill Infant School

299

1,235,617

4,174.31

5.41%

175,000

33,189

-12,501

Ellingham Primary School

378

1,569,534

4,194.02

2.77%

175,000

71,705

Lime Tree Primary School

439

1,796,310

4,133.63

-1.51%

175,000

Robin Hood Primary School

196

944,903

4,862.75

2.30%

Tolworth Junior School

361

1,529,636

4,279.03

Tolworth Infant and Nursery School

302

1,326,872

Coombe Hill Junior School

420

Maple Infants' School

Percentage
change per
pupil for
MFG
purposes

Number
on Roll

Post Dedelegation
Allocation

Per Pupil
allocation

(£)

(£)

Per Pupil
(MFG / CAP
calculation
rate)

(£)

- 21,915-

97,281,221

2.97%

479

1,918,931

4,046.66

3,603.64

0.74%

359

1,503,491

4,228.54

3,600.93

3,478.02

4.16%

328

1,285,564

3,959.95

3,339.26

-15,804

3,541.36

2.06%

391

1,579,844

4,081.06

3,469.98

55,956

-18,355

3,607.54

-1.50%

408

1,695,831

4,196.99

3,662.47

175,000

27,431

-8,195

3,829.94

1.77%

201

947,303

4,753.49

3,763.15

-0.68%

175,000

53,943

-15,093

3,644.84

-1.23%

361

1,540,594

4,308.12

3,690.38

4,435.43

-0.90%

175,000

53,943

-12,627

3,677.34

0.93%

268

1,188,620

4,475.69

3,643.59

1,662,828

4,000.93

3.92%

175,000

49,784

-17,560

3,465.73

4.16%

417

1,588,519

3,849.94

3,327.46

271

1,147,970

4,277.86

3.98%

175,000

42,767

-11,331

3,474.30

3.07%

265

1,079,446

4,113.92

3,370.75

Alexandra School

403

1,669,047

4,183.37

2.93%

175,000

96,344

-16,849

3,510.05

2.62%

355

1,427,461

4,064.39

3,420.41

King Athelstan Primary School

406

1,995,402

4,956.59

-1.41%

175,000

33,090

-16,975

4,444.06

-1.50%

393

1,959,961

5,027.72

4,511.73

Grand Avenue Primary and Nursery School

616

2,386,371

3,915.79

4.33%

175,000

118,785

-25,755

3,438.87

4.16%

619

2,298,208

3,753.32

3,301.67

Malden Manor Primary and Nursery School

396

1,661,248

4,236.88

1.05%

175,000

51,047

-16,557

3,666.05

-0.10%

404

1,677,590

4,192.99

3,669.74

King's Oak Primary School

436

2,294,859

5,305.25

-0.45%

175,000

93,403

-18,229

4,689.65

-1.50%

458

2,422,096

5,328.96

4,761.06

Lovelace Primary School

543

2,186,882

4,069.22

-1.36%

175,000

57,919

-22,703

3,640.27

-1.50%

509

2,079,253

4,125.52

3,695.70

Fern Hill Primary School

660

2,549,383

3,904.51

3.61%

175,000

115,240

-27,595

3,464.75

4.16%

651

2,426,954

3,768.58

3,326.52

Christ Church New Malden CofE Primary

411

1,648,902

4,053.74

1.08%

175,000

11,844

-17,184

3,599.13

0.98%

418

1,659,343

4,010.26

3,564.04

Christ Church CofE Primary School

535

1,935,758

3,660.05

4.12%

175,000

13,231

-22,368

3,308.21

4.16%

554

1,925,040

3,515.34

3,176.23

Malden Parochial CofE Primary School

267

1,067,034

4,038.19

3.31%

175,000

6,056

-11,163

3,360.08

3.88%

267

1,032,825

3,908.80

3,234.51

St Andrew's and St Mark's CofE Junior School

322

1,295,210

4,064.20

0.53%

175,000

11,951

-13,463

3,483.61

0.97%

315

1,260,698

4,042.76

3,450.30

St John's C of E Primary School

207

870,887

4,248.99

2.82%

175,000

7,523

-8,655

3,367.24

4.16%

202

826,578

4,132.51

3,232.90

St Paul's CofE Primary School

207

868,949

4,239.63

1.18%

175,000

5,787

-8,655

3,366.27

1.35%

207

858,964

4,190.13

3,321.49

St Paul's CofE Primary School, Kingston Hill

360

1,392,556

3,909.13

2.13%

175,000

13,018

-15,055

3,386.97

1.73%

377

1,426,747

3,827.53

3,329.42

St Matthew's CofE Primary School

392

1,491,290

3,846.12

2.60%

175,000

15,792

-16,390

3,359.41

2.88%

394

1,460,938

3,748.51

3,265.36

St Mary's CofE (Aided) Primary School

225

955,430

4,288.16

0.77%

175,000

9,443

-9,407

3,468.42

0.58%

228

960,996

4,255.44

3,448.49

Corpus Christi Catholic Primary School

413

1,605,131

3,928.33

4.01%

175,000

15,045

-17,268

3,468.17

4.16%

420

1,569,194

3,776.72

3,329.80

Our Lady Immaculate Catholic Primary School

410

1,559,094

3,844.48

2.36%

175,000

10,350

-17,142

3,392.40

2.41%

415

1,541,904

3,755.97

3,312.50

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School

215

984,716

4,621.88

2.19%

175,000

6,791

-8,989

3,776.34

1.81%

222

995,088

4,522.92

3,709.21

St Luke's CofE Primary School

270

1,073,848

4,019.02

3.47%

175,000

9,603

-11,289

3,335.31

4.16%

270

1,037,825

3,884.34

3,202.24

Chessington Community College

402

2,585,264

6,437.19

1.89%

175,000

255,740

-2,488

5,365.70

4.16%

373

2,350,150

6,318.01

5,151.63

Castle Hill Primary School

403

1,784,633

4,428.37

-1.49%

175,000

3,116

0

3,986.40

-1.50%

417

1,874,470

4,495.13

4,047.10

Knollmead Primary School

192

904,828

4,712.65

-0.56%

175,000

5,955

0

3,770.17

0.28%

183

867,287

4,739.27

3,759.69

Green Lane Primary and Nursery School

369

1,553,004

4,208.68

-0.22%

175,000

24,187

0

3,668.88

-1.50%

402

1,679,309

4,217.93

3,724.75

Latchmere School

871

3,166,697

3,635.70

2.13%

175,000

24,755

0

3,406.36

2.37%

864

3,075,629

3,559.76

3,327.59

St Agatha's Catholic Primary School

403

1,534,115

3,806.74

2.67%

175,000

13,551

0

3,338.87

2.58%

410

1,520,219

3,707.85

3,254.92

Kingston Community School

107

589,814

5,538.16

-6.99%

175,000

2,219

0

3,874.14

1.60%

85

503,166

5,954.63

3,813.24

The Kingston Academy

821

4,414,020

5,376.39

2.25%

175,000

29,184

0

5,127.69

3.75%

621

3,265,419

5,258.32

4,942.23

1,086

5,586,898

5,144.47

3.97%

175,000

56,020

0

4,931.75

4.16%

1,040

5,145,898

4,947.98

4,734.99

Southborough High School

645

3,540,783

5,489.59

3.87%

175,000

26,873

0

5,176.61

4.16%

620

3,276,756

5,285.09

4,970.08

The Tiffin Girls' School

839

4,070,415

4,851.51

4.38%

175,000

43,215

0

4,591.42

4.74%

809

3,760,113

4,647.85

4,383.68

1,024

5,397,480

5,270.98

4.10%

175,000

39,747

0

5,061.26

4.16%

1,008

5,103,982

5,063.47

4,859.34

Tiffin School

870

4,220,722

4,851.40

4.22%

175,000

44,722

0

4,598.85

4.77%

831

3,868,354

4,655.06

4,389.41

Richard Challoner School

778

3,976,582

5,111.29

3.81%

175,000

52,507

0

4,818.86

4.16%

760

3,742,063

4,923.77

4,626.61

The Holy Cross School

761

3,898,105

5,122.35

4.22%

175,000

34,946

0

4,846.47

4.16%

761

3,740,103

4,914.72

4,653.11

Coombe Boys' School

719

3,967,808

5,518.51

-0.46%

175,000

39,214

0

5,220.58

-0.59%

727

4,030,561

5,544.10

5,251.61

The Hollyfield School and Sixth Form Centre

862

4,507,115

5,228.67

3.31%

175,000

37,182

0

4,982.52

4.16%

850

4,301,934

5,061.10

4,783.74

Coombe Girls' School

Tolworth Girls' School and Sixth Form

B25

ANNEX C (AMENDS ANNEX 3 OF THE BUDGET PACK)
FORMAL COUNCIL TAX CALCULATION AND RESOLUTION
(For approval at 26 February 2019 Council – subject to confirmation of the GLA precept)
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows:
1) It be noted that on 15 January 2019, under delegated powers, the Director of Corporate
and Commercial approved the Council Tax Base for 2019/20 for the whole Council area
as 62,806.2 [Item T in the formula in Section 31B(3) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”).
2) That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2019/20 in accordance with
Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:
£
a)

The aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the
items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act, taking into account the
total of special items included in e) below.

b)

The aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the
items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

354,470,587.00

c)

The amount by which the aggregate at a) above exceeds the
aggregate at b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance
with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax requirement for
the year. [Item R in the formula in Section 31A(4) of the Act].

97,424,051.00

The amount at c) above [Item R], all divided by Item T (1 above),
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B(1) of
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year.

1,551.19

The expenses of meeting the levy issued to it by the Wimbledon
and Putney Commons Conservators shall be the aggregate of all
special items referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

46,859.91

The amount at d) above less the result given by dividing the
amount at e) above by Item T (1 above), calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic
amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts
of its area to which no special items relate.

1,550.44

The amount given by adding the amount at f) above to the result
of the amount at e) above divided by the council tax base for the
part of the Council’s area defined by the Wimbledon and Putney
Commons Act 1871, calculated by the Council, as the basic
council tax for dwellings in those areas to which the special items
relate.

1,580.34

d)

e)

f)

g)

451,894,638.00

B26

ANNEX C (AMENDS ANNEX 3 OF THE BUDGET PACK)
h.
Part of the Council’s Area
Valuation
Bands

Part of the Council’s Area to which
special items as defined in e) above
relate

All other
parts of the
Council’s
Area

£

£

A

1,053.56

1,033.63

B

1,229.15

1,205.90

C

1,404.75

1,378.17

D

1,580.34

1,550.44

E

1,931.53

1,894.98

F

2,282.71

2,239.52

G

2,633.90

2,584.07

H

3,160.68

3,100.88

being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at f) and g) above by the number which,
in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to
dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Council in accordance with Section
36(1) of the Act as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories
of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.
i)

j)

That it be noted that for the year 2019/20, the Greater London Authority has stated
the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council in accordance with Section
40 of the Act for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:
Valuation
Bands

GLA Precept
£

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

213.67
249.29
284.90
320.51
391.73
462.96
534.18
641.02

That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at (h) and (i)
above, the Council in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Act hereby sets the
following amounts of Council Tax for the year 2019/20 for each of the categories of
dwelling shown below:

B27

ANNEX C (AMENDS ANNEX 3 OF THE BUDGET PACK)

Valuation
Bands

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
k)

Part of the Council’s Area
Part of the Council’s Area to which
All other parts of the
special items as defined in e) above
Council’s Area
relate
£
£
1,267.23
1,247.30
1,478.44
1,455.19
1,689.65
1,663.07
1,900.85
1,870.95
2,323.26
2,286.71
2,745.67
2,702.48
3,168.08
3,118.25
3,801.70
3,741.90

To note that, in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act
1992, the Council’s relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20 is not
excessive in accordance with principles approved by the Secretary of State under
Section 52ZC.

Finance & Contracts Committee

C1

Appendix C

14 February 2019
Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Report
Report by Director, Corporate & Commercial
Call-in deadline 5pm on 28 February 2019

Purpose
To report the revenue and capital monitoring (forecast outturn) positions for 2018/19 and
note the way in which this will impact on the delivery of the Medium Term Financial Plan.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Finance
To resolve that 1.

the forecast outturn position in respect of the General Fund including the impact of
ongoing expenditure restraint and mitigating actions, for 2018/19 be noted;

2.

the 2018/19 forecast outturn position on the Housing Revenue Account be noted;

3.

the forecast in respect of the Schools Budget and the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) for 2018/19 be noted;

4.

the forecast outturn position in respect of the capital programme for 2018/19 to
2021/22 be noted;

5.

the changes to the capital programme set out in paragraphs 56 to 62 be noted;

6.

Any additional business rate income from the pool pilot that is not required to
deliver a balanced budget in 2018/19 is put into the general fund reserve at the
year end.

Benefits to the Community:
This report sets out the forecast year end financial position. The transparent reporting of
this position enables the community to carry out greater scrutiny of the use of public
funds.

Key Points
A.

The Council approved its Medium Term Financial Plan for 2018/19 to 2021/22 and
detailed budget for 2018/19 at Budget Council on 28 February 2018. This report
updates the Committee on the forecast outturn position for revenue and capital
expenditure based upon monitoring at month 9, and highlights some key risks which
have a potential impact on the forecast outturn position for 2018/19 and on the
medium term position.

B.

In addition to the budget approved in February, some budget changes were agreed
at Council on 17 July 2018. The budget figures reported in this report reflect these
amendments and other virements actioned to reallocate budgets to the new
Directorate structure or made under delegated authority.

C.

The forecast revenue outturn position as at month 9 is an overspend of £1.163m
which is an improvement of £0.815m since the month 6 position was reported to

C2
this committee in November. This variance is derived from a number of elements,
the most significant of which are described below and are largely the same factors
that have been present throughout the year:

1.

A shortfall of income in relation to new investment in commercial property
which has not yet proceeded. The associated growth in capital financing is
also therefore not currently required which reduces the impact of this loss of
income (net impact £1.5m)

2.

Delays in delivering expected savings from Commissioning and Contract
management (£1.75m) although these have been offset by one off savings
from contracts in-year.

3.

Ongoing pressures in relation to Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children
(UASC) and Special Educational Needs (SEN) Transport within the
Achieving for Children budget (total AfC forecast overspend £1.57m).

D.

Offsetting these pressures, the value of the compensating underspends have
increased, bringing the overall forecast overspend down to £1.163m. This is due to
a number of things including implementation of expenditure restraint, recovery
actions plans being implemented by the Strategic Leadership Team and other
underspends being identified.

E.

The Council’s General Fund balance is held to mitigate against the financial risks
inherent in delivering Council services. At the start of the year the general fund
balance was £11.619m. The 2018/19 budget included a contribution of £3.473m to
the General Fund Balance and at Council in July 2018, it was agreed to transfer
£2m of the opening balance to a new reserve for Education and Children’s Services
risks. The expected year end balance would therefore be £13.092m if a balanced
outturn position is achieved. The current forecast outturn position will reduce this to
£11.929m.

F.

Alongside budget monitoring, managers have been asked to provide a RAG rating
against each savings proposal in the 2018/19 budget. The value of Red savings, i.e.
those that are considered to be unable to be delivered in 2018/19 remains at
£7.070m. These proposals are being removed from the proposed budget in
2019/20 being considered elsewhere on this agenda.

G.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is forecasting an underspend of £0.850m, an
increase of £0.205m since month 6 (see paragraphs 29 to 32)

H.

The forecast for the schools budget at month 9 shows a forecast overspend of
£1.176m (£2.262m at month 6). As in recent years, this ongoing pressure stems
primarily from the High Needs Block and both current and forecast future demand
for services to support children and young people with Special Educational Needs.
The position has improved as estimates of future demand have decreased and
additional funding has been provided by Government (see paragraphs 33 to 37)

I.

The General Fund capital programme is forecast to deliver an underspend in
2018/19 of £27.472m with an overspend of £2.555m over the four year programme.
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme is forecasting an in-year
overspend of £0.108m in 2018/19 with a total underspend of £3.392m across the
four years of the programme (paragraphs 38 to 55).

J.

Changes to the capital programme are set out in paragraphs 56 to 62.

C3

Context
1.

From 2018/19 Kingston has had to become self sufficient in terms of funding as
government grant has disappeared. This included joining the rest of London in a
pooling pilot of Business Rates Retention. This means we forego the final year
of grant funding in favour of retaining (across the pool) 100% of business rate
growth. This is also the third year of the ‘4 Year Settlement Offer’ which provides
some certainty over our resource position, though the reliance on Business
Rates means the Council is dependent, to a degree, on the performance of the
local economy.

2.

Within the Council, consistent with the national picture, there has continued to be
a high level of demand for Adult Social Care. High levels of demand in Children’s
Services has also continued to be a significant issue centred on social care,
children leaving care, Asylum Seeking children and SEN Transport. However,
the most important financial pressure in recent years has been the emergence of
a structural overspend in the activities covered by the Dedicated Schools Grant.

3.

Taking all these risks and pressures into account, the Council set a balance
budget to deliver savings of £22m this year. This was always known to be
challenging, and risks in achieving it required greater provision to be made for
contingencies, including a planned contribution to the General Fund Balance in
order to increase the Council’s low level of reserves.

General Fund Revenue Budget
4.

The forecast outturn as at month 9 for each directorate is shown in the table
below. Non-controllable budgets primarily relate to capital charges and all have
nil variances. They are included here for completeness.
Latest
Controllable
Budget
£000s

Non controllable
Budget
£000s

Adults

53,570

529

54,099

53,318

(781)

(683)

AFC

25,972

4,613

30,585

32,155

1,570

1,518

Growth

(9,196)

4,737

(4,459)

(1,698)

2,761

3,311

8,281

8,809

17,090

17,723

633

432

42,895

(18,688)

24,207

21,187

(3,020)

(2,587)

1,593

0

1,593

1,593

0

(13)

123,115

0

123,115

124,278

1,163

1,978

6,883

0

6,883

6,883

0

0

129,998

0

129,998

131,161

1,163

1,978

Directorate

Communities
Corporate & Commercial
Chief Executives
Total
Add back draw down
from Enforcement
Accounts
Total Net Budget as per
MTFS

Latest
Total
Budget
£000s

Month 9 Month 9 Month 6
Forecast Variance Variance
£000s
£000s
£000s

C4
Further explanations of the reasons for these variances, the movement since
month 6 and the actions being taken in relation to the delivery of savings are
described in subsequent paragraphs.

5.

6.

The forecast excludes the additional income that is likely to be available as a
result of participation in the London Business Rates Pooling Pilot. No formal
monitoring has been provided by the City of London who administer the pool, but
informal discussions suggest there is likely to be a small improvement on the
position estimated at the start of the financial year. If the additional business rate
income is realised then this will reduce the Council’s in -year overspend. This
report recommends that any additional business rates income above what is
required in relation to the in year overpend is put into the general fund reserve. In
addition there are proposed decision on other papers on this agenda if agreed
would also impact on the financial outturn.

Savings Delivery
7.

The table below sets out the RAG status of savings within each directorate. This
demonstrates that the forecast overspend of £1.163m is significantly less than
the value of the red savings due to other mitigating actions.
Directorate

Red

Amber

Green

Grand Total

Adults

600

69

2,678

3,347

AFC

318

300

625

1,243

3,176

1,735

2,922

7,833

0

331

1,413

1,744

2,976

1,158

3,884

8,018

0

0

0

0

7,070

3,593

11,522

22,185

Growth
Communities
Corporate & Commercial
Chief Executives
Total

Adults
8.

An underspend of £0.781m is forecast within the Adults Directorate (this is an
increase of the underspend by £98k since month 6). As shown in the table below,
this derives from a forecast underspend of £64k in Adult Social Care (ASC) and a
forecast underspend on the Housing General Fund of £0.718m.

Adults Directorate
Operations

Latest total
budget
£000s

Latest
forecast
£000s

Variance
£000s

44,531

44,429

(103)

Commissioning & Transformation - ASC

6,689

6,730

40

Commissioning & Transformation Community Housing

2,878

2,160

(718)

54,099

53,318

(780)

Total

9.

The Adult Social Care part of Commissioning & Transformation is forecasting an
overspend of £40k mainly due to Kingston at Home costs.

10.

Operations is forecasting an underspend of £104k, this is a decrease to the
month 6 underspend forecast of £240k. The main changes are:

C5
1. The predicted cost of Mental Health clients has fallen to an overspend of
£141k, decreasing from a month 6 overspend £282k.
2. There has also been a reduction in the forecast relating to Learning
Disabilities and the service is now predicted to underspend by £397k, a
reduction of £294k from month 6.
3. There is a forecasted underspend of £279k in relation to direct payments
resulting from revised assumptions re client activities, costs and start dates
and additional clawback income.
4. A predicted overspend of £417k in home care is being offset by an
underspend of £175k in placements. Placement underspend is up £102k
from month 6, Maximising Independence and Discharge to Assess has
meant more community based support and less placements.

5. There is a forecasted underspend of £279k in relation to direct payments
resulting from revised assumptions re client activities, costs and start dates
and additional clawback income.
11.

Community Housing are currently predicting an underspend of £0.718m, an
increase to underspend of £0.144m since month 6. The underspend is mainly
due to lower numbers in nightly paid/B&B TA than expected from the impact of
Homelessness Reduction Act and Universal Credit together with staffing
underspends due to vacancies and the effective use of graduate recruits.

Children’s Services
12.

Children Services are forecasting an in year overspend of £1.570m after
recovery actions of £169k. This is an increase of £52k since month 6.

Children's Services
Legal

Latest
forecast
£000s

Variance
£000s

620

885

265

Children Looked After

5,929

5,897

(32)

Leaving Care and Unaccompanied Asylum
Seekers

2,241

3,387

1,146

SEN Transport

2,558

2,918

360

14,624

14,624

0

4,613

4,613

0

30,585

32,324

1,739

AfC controllable budget
Non-controllable budget (held in RBK)
Total

13.

Latest net
budget
£000s

In-year Recovery Savings

(169)

Net Projected Variance

1,570

The in year recovery actions have realised £170k of cost reductions resulting in
the in-year recovery savings reducing from £340k at Q2 to £169k at Q3. This
reduction has been achieved through full placement review meetings as well as
the Partners in Practice work within Social Care and Early Help. The remaining
recovery actions of £169k in Social Care will be challenging as the impact of
placement changes become less significant as the financial year progresses.

C6
The majority of the Children’s Services overspend is contained within the Leaving
Care and Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) cohorts which is
overspending by £1.146m. Pressures have been growing in this area for 3 main
reasons:

14.

1.

The Leaving Care cohort has had an increasing number of high cost and
complex cases that have transitioned from Children Looked After. This has
led to significant overspends within Leaving Care as young people are
supported up to age 25.

2.

The UASC aged over 18 cohort have increased by 31% since the start of the
financial year from 52 to 68. There is an average annual shortfall of £14k
against the Home Office funding for these clients.

3.

Following the suspension of the National Transfer Scheme by the Home
Office, which has effectively suspended Authorities thresholds for taking
UASC, AfC are currently supporting 32 under 18 UASC. This is one over our
set threshold. An announcement on the future of the National Transfer
Scheme is expected by the end of January from the Home Office.

15.

SEN Transport is projected to overspend by £360k. A paper outlining options to
reduce spend to within budget for next financial year is being presented to the
Children’s and Adults’ Care and Education Committee on 7 February 2019.

16.

Legal service overspend has increased by £75k since quarter 2 due to an
increase in complexity and therefore the length of proceedings in Social Care
and an increase in the number of SEN related legal spend.

Communities

Communities
Communities Directorate Management

Latest total
budget
£000s

Latest
forecast
£000s

Variance
£000s

64

102

38

Healthy and Safe Communities

(250)

(217)

33

Culture, Communities and Engagement

3,195

3,344

149

Shared Environment Service

9,668

10,076

408

408

340

(68)

4,005

4,078

73

17,090

17,723

633

Customer Contact
ICT
Total

17.

Communities is forecasting an overspend of £0.633m, this is an increase of
£0.201m since month 6, mainly due to an increase arising from street lighting
costs in the Highways and Transport Shared Service offset by decreased costs in
Culture & Communities and Customer Journey.

18.

The forecast for the Shared Environment Service has increased by £269k since
month 6 and now stands at £0.408m. The increase is due to an overspend in
Street Lighting of £0.200m and the write off, on legal advice, of a disputed unpaid
invoice of £75k.

19.

Kingston Adult Education - £189k overspend, down by £21k from month 6, due to
income pressure due to loss of grant from the Skills Funding Agency, offset by
action to increase income and reduce staffing through a restructure.

20.

C7
ICT costs - £73k overspend due to an unbudgeted Microsoft contract increase.

Corporate and Commercial

Corporate and Commercial
Corporate & Commercial Directorate Management

Latest total
budget
£000s

Latest
forecast
£000s

Variance
£000s

10

10

0

3,105

3,122

17

813

827

14

Contracts and Commercial

3,082

2,594

(488)

Governance and Law

2,240

2,540

300

South London Waste Partnership

4,678

4,075

(603)

Support and Operations

3,853

3,625

(228)

(1,751)

0

1,751

8,177

4,394

(3,783)

24,207

21,187

(3,020)

Shared Finance Service
People and Organisational Development

NSU Savings/Growth held centrally
Other Corporate Services
Total

21.

There is an underspend of £3.020m forecast in Corporate and Commercial, an
increase in the underspend of £0.433m since month 6.

22.

In Contracts and Commercial, an underspend is forecast of £0.488m. This is
made up of an underspend of £0.807m on major contracts and and over spend of
£0.320m on commissioning and procurement mainly related to the delayed
implementation of the Council‘s restructure.The forecast additional income on off
street parking has reduced from £1.151m at month 6 to £0.570m at month 9,
mainly related to a VAT adjustment to ensure the correct treatment of VAT.

23.

There is an underspend on SLWP of £603k due primarily to lower gate fees
during testing phase of Energy from Waste facility.

24.

In Governance and Law, an overspend of £0.300m is forecast due to delay in the
implementation of the Council’s restructure, this is an improvement of £0.468m
since the position reported at month 6.

25.

The main driver of the overall underspend in the Corporate and Commercial
Directorate is a £3.784m underspend on Other Corporate Services, an increase
in the underspend of £0.495m since month 6. This position is due to a few
factors including:
1. growth for capital financing not needed in full due to: the non-delivery of
investment and operational property savings (£1,561k), the impact of
2017-18 capital outturn (£600k) and use of internal borrowing to fund
purchase of Kingsmill Business Park (£312k)
2. Shortfall of income from interest received reduced by £45k as cash balances
and interest rates have risen
3. Analysis of centrally held Government grants revealed higher than budgeted
income (£429k)
4. Housing Benefit Overpayments (£420k), as a result of the the migration of
claims over to Universal Credit, there appears to be a larger than usual
amount of overpayments transferring to the debtors system as entitlement to
Housing benefit ends.

C8
5. A small contingency budget remains unspent, so an assumption has been
made to include a proportion of this (£197k) as being unused throughout the
remainder of the year with the remainder expected to be required to increase
the Council’s bad debt provision.

Growth Directorate

Growth Directorate
Property
Strategic Planning and Infrastructure
Growth Directorate Management
Regeneration and Strategic Housing
Total

Latest net
budget
£000s

Latest AD
forecast
£000s

Variance
£000s

(5,777)

(2,908)

2,869

0

6

6

314

264

(50)

1,004

940

(64)

(4,459)

(1,698)

2,761

26.

There is a forecast overspend of £2.761m in Growth, an improvement of
£0.550m since month 6. The overspend in Growth primarily arises from a
shortfall in income rather than additional cost.

27.

In assets there is a forecast overspend of £2.870m due to shortfall of income as
new investment property savings are not being delivered this financial year. The
forecast is based on revised investment property income and service running
costs. A related underspend is forecast in Corporate and Commercial as capital
financing costs are not being incurred. The net shortfall on new commercial
property investment is £1.5m.

Chief Executives
28.

No variance is currently reported against the Chief Executive’s budget.

Housing Revenue Account
29.

In the ring fenced Housing Revenue Account (HRA) an £0.850m underspend is
reported in month 9, representing a £0.205m increase in the underspend since
month 6.

30.

The forecast position stems mainly from £0.380m of understated enhanced
housing management income budget due to systems error, £0.209m additional
revenue income from higher than budgeted major works income expected from
leaseholders and a £0.349m underspend on bad debt provision following delayed
full rollout of Universal Credit.

31.

Other smaller underspends reported from lower than budgeted running, supplies
and services budgets and higher rent of affordable rent stock recently added to
the HRA, as well as improving void losses on garages.

32.

These are offset by carried forward 2017/18 estate regeneration funding
commitment, and £0.394m increase in depreciation charge after stock
revaluation.

Schools Budget
33.

Schools Budgets are currently predicting an overspend of £1.176m, a decrease
of £1.086m since month 6. The reduction is due to additional high needs funding
of £0.414m announced in December together with a £0.450m reduction in
projected future demand. Whilst the number of EHCPs has continued to rise

C9
significantly (103 since the start of the financial year), the average cost
associated with these new EHCPs is lower than first anticipated, particularly in
post 16 education. Due to the attached average cost of these new plans reducing
as the financial year has progressed, the overall projections have subsequently
been reduced. This is really positive and reflects the significant activity that is
ongoing in AfC, the Council and schools to improve efficiency in delivering
solutions that continue to meet the needs of young people.

34.

The main overspends in SEN are centred around Independent Placements and
School Top-ups. Demand for Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) has
increased by 103 since the start of the financial year indicating that the speed at
which demand is escalating is not improving.

35.

The projected overspend in the High Needs Block is £1.64m for 2018/19, which
includes £0.45m future demand. The overspend pressures in SEN are partially
offset by underspends in the Early Years and Schools Blocks.

36.

The Early Years Block is forecast to underspend by £0.21m due to reduced take
up of additional 15 hours support and low requests to date for the SEN Inclusion
Fund. The Schools Block is forecast to underspend by £0.27m due to lower than
expected expansions and bulge classes.

37.

The deficit balance on the DSG stood at £10.690m at the beginning of the year.
A £1.176m overspend would increase this deficit to £11.866m.

Capital Programme
38.

The general fund capital programme forecasts an underspend in 2018/19 of
£27.472m with an overspend of £2.555m over the four year programme. The
HRA programme forecasts an in year overspend of £0.108m in 2018/19 with a
total underspend of £3.392m over the life of the programme.

39.

A breakdown of the forecast position is shown in the table below.

Capital Programme
(£000's)
Schools

Budget
18/19

19/20

Forecast

20/21

21/22

Total

18/19

19/20

20/21

Variance
21/22

Total

Total

In-year

9,618

4,726

913

0

15,256

3,497

5,850

5,913

0

15,259

3

(6,121)

10,425

13,007

3,570

900

27,902

10,685

13,266

8,382

900

33,233

5,331

260

0

68,000

0

0

68,000

0

68,000

0

0

68,000

0

0

27,705

1,440

1,440

1,440

32,025

7,650

20,367

1,440

1,440

ICT

4,090

2,208

2,165

1,500

9,963

3,523

2,380

2,165

1,500

9,567

(395)

(567)

Regeneration

9,011

10,299

0

0

19,310

9,019

10,299

0

0

19,318

8

8

Environment

1,615

2,061

180

0

3,856

1,068

2,697

180

0

3,945

89

(547)

Highways

4,406

3,889

3,304

2,332

13,931

3,955

3,270

3,162

2,190

12,577 (1,353)

(450)

GF Total

66,870

105,630

11,572

HRA

15,971

14,951

9,742

CAPITAL TOTAL

82,840

120,581

21,314

GF Property
Property Investment
GF Housing

40.

30,897 (1,128) (20,055)

6,172 190,243

39,397 126,129 21,242

6,030 192,797

3,537

16,079

5,537

44,201

9,709 234,444

12,451

6,742

2,555 (27,472)

40,809 (3,392)

55,476 138,580 27,984 11,567 233,606

The following section of this report highlights any significant variance within
projects at a service level.

108

(837) (27,364)

C10

Schools: in-year underspend £6.121m - total overspend £0.003m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

Variance

19/20 20/21 21/22

Total

Total In-year

Expansion Projects

7,294

2,408

0

0

9,702

1,192 3,515 5,000

0

9,707

4 (6,103)

Maintenance Projects

1,436

1,362

350

0

3,148

1,419 1,379

350

0

3,148

0

(17)

887

955

563

0

2,406

563

0

2,405

(1)

(1)

9,618

4,726

913

0 15,256

Other Projects
Schools Programme

41.

887

955

3,497 5,850 5,913

0 15,259

3 (6,121)

Basic Need grant of £6.107m has been reprofiled from 18/19 to 19/20 and 20/21
to better reflect planned spending in school expansion projects. Reductions in
forecast school maintenance grant allocations of £2.078m have been reflected in
20/21 and 21/22. Estimates had been used for future years, however due to
uncertainty this budget and forecast has been reduced to reflect the ESFA not
announcing future allocations past 19/20.

General Fund Property: in-year overspend £0.260m - total overspend £5.331m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)
Property Projects
Responsive Projects
GF Property Programme

18/19

19/20

Forecast

20/21

21/22

9,470

12,607

3,170

955

400

400

10,425

13,007

3,570

Total

500 25,747
400

2,155

18/19

19/20

20/21 21/22

9,721 12,866 7,982
964

Variance

400

400

900 27,902 10,685 13,266 8,382

Total

Total In-year

500 31,069 5,322
400

2,164

251

9

9

900 33,233 5,331

260

42.

The property projects line includes provision for an increase in the dementia care
home cost to £15.554m. This project is being considered in more detail at the
Children’s and Adults’ Care and Education Committee on 12 February 2019.

43.

There is budget reprofiling in CCTV projects , Coombe Oak redevelopment,
external works to Tolworth recreation centre and changing rooms at King Edward
recreation ground. The reprofiling reflects the latest estimate of spend and total
budgets at a project level have not changed.

Housing General Fund: in-year underspend £20.055m - total underspend £1.128m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)
Disabled Facilities Grant

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

19/20

Variance

20/21 21/22

Total

Total

2,178

840

840

840

4,698

1,100

840

840

840

3,620 (1,078)

600

600

600

600

2,400

550

600

600

600

2,350

Cambridge Road Acquisition

24,927

0

0

0 24,927

6,000 18,927

0

GF Housing Programme

27,705

1,440

1,440

1,440 32,025

Discretionary Grants Unallocated

(50)

0 24,927

In-year
(1,078)
(50)

0 (18,927)

7,650 20,367 1,440 1,440 30,897 (1,128) (20,055)

44.

The underspend on Disabled Facilities Grants is based on current forecasted
uptake by residents in this financial year, any underspend on this grant will be
available in the next year. This budget has increased due additional funding
announced by government in the budget as well as updating the baseline to
reflect this years increased allocation.

45.

Cambridge Road Acquisition GLA loan has been reprofiled to better reflect the
spend of this budget in line with the overall project.

C11
ICT Programme: in-year underspend £0.567m - total underspend £0.395m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

19/20

Variance

20/21 21/22

Total

Total

In-year

Managed Projects

1,972

600

665

0

3,237

1,552

600

665

0

2,817

(420)

(420)

Oversight Projects

614

0

36

0

650

466

172

36

0

674

24

(148)

Technology Investment Fund

1,504

1,608

1,464

1,500

6,076

1,505

1,608 1,464 1,500

6,076

0

0

ICT Programme

4,090

2,208

2,165

1,500

9,963

3,523

2,380 2,165 1,500

9,567

(395)

(567)

46.

Managed ICT projects are forecasting an underspend as the strategy for the data
centre refresh approach is being undertaken and delivery is better understood.
There is budgetary under spends in the device refresh project and over spends in
the planning system replacement and telephony projects, although these
overspends are manageable within existing budgets.

47.

Within the ICT oversight projects, the Library Management System and
Registrars booking system budgets have been reprofiled to 19/20 to show the
rollout of the systems.

Regeneration: in-year underspend £0.567m - total underspend £0.395m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)
Public Realm

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

19/20

Variance

20/21 21/22

Total

Total

In-year

893

475

0

0

1,368

901

475

0

0

1,376

8

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Mini Hollands

8,118

9,824

0

0 17,942

8,118

9,824

0

0 17,942

0

0

Regeneration Programme

9,011

10,299

0

0 19,310

9,019 10,299

0

0 19,318

8

8

SES Public Realm

48.

The New Homes Bonus funded Exchange project budget has been rephased
from 18/19 to 19/20 based on service forecasts.

Environment: in-year underspend £0.547m - total overspend £0.089m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

Variance

19/20 20/21 21/22

Total

Total In-year

Public Realm

1,615

2,061

180

0

3,856

1,068 2,697

180

0

3,945

89

(547)

Environment Programme

1,615

2,061

180

0

3,856

1,068 2,697

180

0

3,945

89

(547)

49.

The SLWP budget has been reprofiled to 19/20 to reflect contract start dates.
The waste transfer station compliance works phase 2 project is currently being
assessed so the budget has been reprofiled to reflect this. It is expected that
these projects will still be delivered within budget.

50.

Minor overspends are forecast on Relocation of Street Cleansing Chapel Mill
Road.

C12
Highways: in-year underspend £0.450m - total underspend £1.353m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)
Corridors & Neighbourhoods

18/19

19/20

20/21

Forecast
21/22

Total

18/19

Variance

19/20 20/21 21/22

Total

Total

In-year

1,314

0

0

0

1,314

1,214

0

0

0

1,214

(100)

(100)

80

900

972

0

1,952

0

930

972

0

1,902

(50)

(80)

Principal Road Maintenance

3,012

2,989

2,332 2,332 10,665

2,741 2,340 2,190 2,190

9,461 (1,203)

(270)

Highways Programme

4,406

3,889

3,304 2,332 13,931

3,955 3,270 3,162 2,190 12,577 (1,353)

(450)

Street Lighting

51.

The street lighting column replacement programme has rephased some budget
to 19/20 to reflect anticipated spend. The service has reviewed delivery and
resource across the rolling programme and reduced future year budgets
accordingly. Clarence Street and Fife Road street lighting replacement project
has reprofiled budget as delivery will take place during springtime.

52.

Additional Highways funding of £0.396m has been added to the programme in
18/19 as announced in the Autumn budget.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA): in-year overspend £0.108m - total underspend
£3.500m
Budget
Capital Programme (£000's)

18/19

Forecast

19/20 20/21 21/22

Better Homes

4,193

1,000

Other Projects

1,986

9,331 5,772

Statutory Compliance

1,184

Asset Improvements

1,641

19/20

20/21 21/22

0

0

372 17,461

1,986

6,831 2,772 2,372 13,961 (3,500)

0

650

3,134

1,220

3,250 2,600 1,795

9,286

1,606

650

0

5,193

Total In-year

1,000
650

0

Total

4,193

650

0

18/19

5,193

650

0

Total

Variance

650

3,170

36

36

3,250 2,600 1,795

9,251

(35)

(35)

Health & Safety

185

50

50

50

335

249

50

50

50

399

64

64

Housing Conversion

577

400

400

400

1,777

612

400

400

400

1,812

35

35

Refurbishment

270

270

270

270

1,080

270

270

270

270

1,080

0

0

5,935

0

0

0

5,935

5,943

0

0

0

5,943

8

8

15,971 14,951 9,742 3,537 44,201 16,079 12,451 6,742 5,537 40,809 (3,392)

108

1-4-1 Developments
HRA Programme

53.

Better Homes has reprofiled budget to deliver the last phase of works; delivery
has been delayed due to a number of factors impacting the contractor's’ ability to
deliver the works on time.

54.

HRA other projects has reprofiled budgets against its Keystone project. This is to
better reflect the planned spend on Major capital works across the four years and
to purchase a new ICT system in 19/20. The budget reduction forecast of £3.5m
will in reality be profiled against future year budgets outside the four years
considered in this report.

55.

Budgets have been reprofiled for Affordable Housing Partner work, Estate
Lighting project and the Provision of Parking Bays project due to recruitment
issues within the service. The Housing Management solutions project has been
reprofiled due to a redesign of the housing model.

Capital Programme Changes
56.

Additional budget is requested for the Dementia Nursing home project of
£0.350m in 18/19, £0.102m in 19/20 and £4.812m in 20/21. The total budget for

this project will now be £15.554m.

C13

57.

Additional Disabled Facilities Grant for 2018/19 of £0.155m was announced at
Budget and is reflected in the programme, our original allocation for 18/19 was
also higher than estimated and has been increased to match the years grant
award.

58.

Additional Highways funding £0.396m added to programme in 18/19. Added to
budget, not yet reflected in forecast but is assured to be fully utilised in year.

59.

Additions to the schools maintenance programme include roofing projects at
Lovelace, Robin Hood and Alexandra and flooring projects at various schools
drawn down from existing reserves and reflected in forecasts.

60.

Additional project in general fund property for Guildhall estate remedials drawn
down from existing reserve and reflected in forecast.

61.

Addition in budget forecast of Home Improvement grant allocation; to be drawn
down from existing reserve.

62.

Reductions in school maintenance grant allocations of £2.078m have been
reflected in 20/21 and 21/22. Estimates had been used for future years, however
due to uncertainty this budget and forecast has been reduced to reflect the
reduction in grant payable to the Council down to zero in each respective year.

Consultations
63.

None in relation to this report.

Timescale
64.

Regular monitoring of the forecast outturn position is one of the essential building
blocks for planning the next stages of the Council’s medium term financial
strategy. An update on the forecast outturn position is expected to be reported to
each Finance and Contracts Committee meeting.

Resource Implications
65.
The resource implications are contained within the main body of this report.
Legal Implications
66.
None arising from this report.
Risk Assessment
67.

This report considers the forecast outturn position and highlights some of the
risks which are being managed within the 2018/19 budget. No further risk
assessment has been carried out other than as detailed in the report.

Equalities Impact Assessment
68.

None required as no new or revised policies arising from this report.

Health Implications
69.

None in relation to this report.

Road Network, Environmental & Air Quality Implications
70.

None in relation to this report.

C14

Background papers
None
Authors of report - Revenue - Rachel Howard, Head of RBK Financial Strategy &
Reporting, rachel.howard@kingston.gov.uk, Tel: 020 8547 5709 and
Capital - Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Investment, Risk and Commercial Finance,
lyndsey.gamble@sutton.gov.uk, Tel: 020 8770 5358

Finance and Contracts Committee

D1

Appendix D

14 February 2019
CIL and S106 Biannual Monitoring Report
Report by Assistant Director, Strategic Planning & Infrastructure
Call-in deadline 5pm on 28 February 2019
Purpose
To provide an update summarising income and agreements from planning obligations,
Section 106 (S106) and the Community Infrastructure Levies (CIL), entered into during
the period commencing 1 April to 30 September 2018. Information on the allocation of
S106 funds for two projects is provided for the Committee to approve.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy & Culture and
Heritage
To Resolve that -

1. the information and analysis provided on financial contributions agreed, received,
and spent during the monitoring period of 1 April to 30 September 2018, be noted;
2. the Mayoral CIL and Kingston CIL income received for the period of 1 April to 30
September 2018, be noted; and,
3. the allocation of funds, as detailed in Table 4, be approved.

Benefits to the Community
Planning obligations mitigate the impact of development, which benefits local
communities as it supports the provision of local infrastructure. Contributions arising from
S106 and CIL are to be spent on a range of infrastructure projects that will benefit the
community.

Key Points
A.

The total S106 contributions signed for the period totals £582,559.40.

B.

The total S106 money received for the period totals £751,633.33.

C.

The total CIL receipts collected through the Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy
for the period totals £170,820.27.

D.

The total CIL receipts collected on behalf of the Mayor of London, through the
Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy, for the period totals £85,590.71.

Context
1.

Section 106 agreements (referred to as S106, and named after the section of
legislation) are private agreements made between local authorities and
developers. They are attached to a planning permission and used to make a
development acceptable which would be unacceptable in planning terms if the
S106 was not in place. Planning obligations must be directly relevant to the
proposed development. They are used for three purposes:
● To require a type of development, e.g. affordable housing

D2
● To compensate for loss or damage by a development, e.g. loss of habitat
● To mitigate the impact of development, e.g. improved public transport to
mitigate the pressure from new residents

2.

Similarly to S106 contributions, the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a
planning charge to help offset the impact of development on infrastructure.
Contributions are used to provide or improve infrastructure. There are two CIL
charges operating in Kingston: the Kingston CIL for infrastructure in the borough,
and the Mayoral CIL which applies across most of Greater London and funds
Crossrail. Most new development which creates net additional floor space of 100
square metres or more, or creates a new dwelling, is potentially liable for the
levy. Fifteen percent (or 25% in areas with a Neighbourhood Plan) of the CIL is
ring-fenced as the neighbourhood portion, to be spent in the local area in
accordance with local community priorities.

3.

It is noted that both S106 and CIL are subject to strict legal constraints about
what they can be spent on and where. For S106, those are contained in the
specific legal agreement securing the funding and are often specific to that
planning application. For CIL, the legal constraints apply to the fund as a whole.
In addition, there are specific rules to make sure the Council does not collect
funding twice for the same infrastructure through S106 and CIL. Under current
legislation the Council cannot pool more than five contributions from S106 for
infrastructure which could be funded by CIL, however it should be noted that the
Chancellor of the Exchequer’s 2018 Budget Statement confirmed that the
government will consult on plans to introduce a simpler system of developer
contributions, including removing all restrictions on Section 106 pooling towards
a single piece of infrastructure. It is therefore crucial that the Council reviews the
schemes and projects put forward against the legal tests, and the decisions
taken for funding allocation, to ensure these limited, but important funding
streams, are appropriately managed.

4.

This report sets out the detail of S106 and CIL income received, and agreements
entered into for the first half of the 2018/19 financial year.

5.

This report sets out:
● A summary of S106 agreements signed from 1 April to 30 September 2018
● An analysis of S106 financial contributions and CIL received by
neighbourhood from 1 April to 30 September 2018
● Unallocated spend
● Proposed allocations

6. Governance arrangements for the spending of CIL were agreed by Growth
Committee in November 2016. There are no equivalent arrangements for S106
beyond the Council’s Constitution. These arrangements are under review, including
the potential to give Neighbourhoods the final approval of the neighbourhood
proportion of CIL. Neighbourhood Committees have been consulted on proposals to
strengthen Neighbourhood arrangements, including neighbourhood CIL proposals,
and recommendations were presented to the meeting of Council on 11 December
for decision. However, an urgent decision is required on a number of allocations of
S106 monies which have been included in this report for consideration by the
Finance and Contracts Committee.

D3
7. It should be noted that this is the first Biannual Monitoring report being reported to
this committee as previous monitoring was reported to Strategic Housing and
Planning Committee. It is considered that this approach is more appropriate given
the allocation of funds across a range of areas and services.

Financial Contributions Agreed
Table 1: Summary of S106 agreements signed from 1 April to 30 September 2018
Category

Kingston
Town

Maldens &
Coombe

Surbiton

South of the
Borough

Borough
Total

0

0

£138,500.00

0

£138,500.00

£119,005.40

£134,946.00

£112,308.00

0

£366,259.40

Cycle Parking

£2,000.00

0

0

0

£2,000.00

Footway Contribution

£10,000.00

0

0

0

£10,000.00

Traffic Management

£15,000.00

0

0

0

£15,000.00

Travel Plan Monitoring

£4,500.00

0

0

0

£4,500.00

Monitoring

£3,300.00

0

£3,000.00

0

6,300.00

0

0

£40,000.00

0

£40,000.00

£153,805.40

£134,946.00

£293,808.00

0

£582,559.40

Affordable Housing
Carbon Offsetting

Parking
Total

8. A total of £582,559.40 S106 contributions have been signed across the Borough
from 1 April to 30 September 2018. The largest amounts signed during the
monitoring period were:
-

Development at Cocks Crescent (16/15346) for £134,946 (Maldens & Coombe)
Former NHS Trust Site, South Place/Warwick Grove (18/16123) for £110,140
(Surbiton)
Land at 64 Ravenscar Road, 125 Tolworth Park Road and 115-127 Red Lion Road
(17/16147) for £182,918 (Surbiton)
57 Eden Street (16/13280) for £52,800 (Kingston Town)

S106 Financial Contributions Received
9. Table 2 summarises S106 receipts received from 1 April to 30 September 2018 by
Neighbourhood, and Category. The trigger for S106 contributions (which includes
additional index linked sums) varies between developments and often relates to the
commencement date or specific occupancy rates of the development; therefore the
contributions listed are from S106 agreements signed in recent years.

D4
Table 2: Summary of S106 Financial Contributions Received 1 April to 30 September
2018
Category

Kingston
Town

Maldens &
Coombe

Surbiton

South of
the
Borough

Borough
Total

0

£115,228.00

£21,313.59

0

£136,541.59

Carbon Offsetting

£14,075.70

0

£500

0

£14,575.70

Community Safety &
Visitor Management

£53,675.61

0

0

0

£53,675.61

Cycling Improvement

0

£15,000

0

0

£15,000

Environment

0

£3,455.80

0

0

£3,455.80

£10,716.76

0

0

0

£10,716.76

0

£2,051.88

£214.26

0

£2,266.14

Public Realm

£29,736.29

0

0

0

£29,736.29

Sustainable &
Environmental
Improvement

£241,325.55

0

0

0

£241,325.55

Sustainable Travel

£14,868.14

£1,727.90

0

0

£16,596.04

0

0

£210,000

0

£210,000

£536.76

0

0

0

£536.76

£1,610.27

0

0

0

£1,610.27

Education

£450.00

£9,100.00

£963.96

0

£10,513.96

Monitoring

£2,726.43

£1,897.96

£458.47

0

£5,082.86

£369,721.51

£148,461.54

£233,450.28

£0.00

£751,633.33

Affordable Housing

Go Cycle
Health & Social Care

TfL Bus Route
Traffic Management
Travel Plan
Monitoring

Total

Unallocated Expenditure
Table 3: Total unallocated S106 contributions at 30 September 2018
Category

Kingston
Town

Maldens &
Coombe

Surbiton

South of the
Borough

Borough
Total

0

£115,228.00

£21,313.59

0

£136,541.59

Carbon Off-set

£92,710.59

0

£500.00

0

£93,210.59

CCTV

£5,056.49

0

0

0

£5,056.49

Community Safety &
Visitor Management

£53,675.61

0

0

0

£53,675.61

Affordable Housing

D5
CPZ

£7,079.08

£5,080.17

0

0

£12,159.25

0

£15,000.00

£480.00

0

£15,480.00

£62,300.00

0

0

0

£62,300.00

0

£3,455.80

0

0

£3,455.80

Go Cycle

£10,716.76

0

0

0

£10,716.76

Health & Social Care

£319,122.54

£97,509.15

£18,964.34

£1,991.92

£437,587.95

Highways

£382,443.39

0

0

0

£382,443.39

Leisure

£129,532.29

0

£8,129.66

0

£137,661.95

Public Open Space

£126,440.50

£36,177.29

£21,294.97

£2,961.52

£186,874.28

Public Realm

£201,347.58

£4,886.79

£5274.30

£75,086.71

£286,595.38

Sustainable &
Environmental
Improvement

£241,325.55

0

0

0

£241,325.55

Sustainable Travel

£467,727.87

£150,115.64

£4,857.56

£4,004.15

£626,705.22

0

0

£210,000

0

£210,000

£536.76

0

0

0

£536.76

£1,610.27

0

0

0

£1,610.27

Cycling
Employment
Technology Hub
Environment

TFL Bus route
Traffic Management
Travel Plan
Monitoring
Education

£21,832.10

Monitoring

£7,343.88

Total

£2,101,625.28

£427,452.84

£290,814.42

£84,044.30

£2,933,112.82

10. In total there was £2,933,112.82 unallocated expenditure up to 30 September 2018.
Allocation of Funds
11. The Finance and Contracts Committee is asked to allocate S106 funds to the
projects detailed in Table 4. Further information on the projects follow. Discussions
have taken place at officer meetings to ensure that the projects are an appropriate
spend of S106 funds. Allocation by this committee would make the S106 funds
available as set out below.

Table 4: Proposed Allocation of Funds
Project
Allocation

D6

Type

Application of
Funds

Amount

SHEDx

Public Open
Space / Public
Realm

Delivery of
recommendations
of the Tolworth
Green
Infrastructure
Audit.

£26,569.27

Numerous
(total of 9
allocations)

Open space, play
facilities, biodiversity,
public realm.

Community
Parks
Programme

Public Parks/
Green Spaces

Delivery of a
number of physical
improvements to
RBK parks & green
spaces within the
context of the
Community Parks
Programme.

£208,823.24

Numerous
(total of 17
allocations
from Leisure,
Public Open
Space and
Public Realm
categories)

Public open space,
play facilities,
biodiversity, public
realm, leisure and
community facilities.

Total

Obligation

Spend
Requirement

£235,392.51

Project Allocation: SHEDx
The allocation of these funds will fulfill the Council’s commitment to provide £25,000 match fund
from S106 to the SHEDx project, a Greater London Authority (GLA) Good Growth Fund funded
project, which has been incorporated into the associated Grant Agreement with the GLA. While
only £25,000 was committed, £26,569.27 is requested to facilitate the spend of nine small scale
allocations in the Tolworth area which individually might be difficult to usefully spend, and whose
spend requirements (public open space / public realm) complement the SHEDx project.
SHEDx is a community-led regeneration project, based in Tolworth, and follows the
recommendations of the Draft Tolworth Area Plan. As part of the project, a Green Infrastructure
Audit (GIA) is being undertaken by Kingston Environment Centre in collaboration with students
from Kingston University. The GIA will identify areas of public open space and public realm which
can be improved through the mobilisation of local community and voluntary networks, local
communities, and volunteers. This allocation will contribute towards the capital costs associated
with this in accordance with their respective legal agreements.
Improvements to the local area are anticipated to include some of following:
● enhanced green space to better support biodiversity and community enjoyment (including
better signposting to, and connections between, local green spaces);
● improved quality of public realm (small scale interventions);
● improved satisfaction in the quality of the local environment and local distinctiveness; and
● improved children’s play facilities.
The SHEDx project and associated funding mechanisms, including the allocation of £25,000
S106 contributions, was agreed at the Corporate Resources Panel on 10th July 2018. The
following planning application contributions have been allocated:

S106 planning contributions allocated to SHEDx

D7

Site address

Planning Ref

120 Ewell Rd

13/16611

1,300.00

Public Open Space

Unit 6 Chancery Lane 4-20 Tolworth Close 13/16031

1,380.60

Public Open Space

Former 60-62 Red Lion Rd

12/10109

5,616.76

Public Open Space

Rear of 21 Victoria Rd

12/16612

5,231.00

Public Open Space

20 Kingsdowne Rd

13/16572

3,245.02

Public Open Space

123 Warren Drive South

12/16073

1,921.59

Public Open Space

37 Victoria Rd

11/16609

2,600.00

Public Open Space

31 Tolworth Broadway

12/16685

1,404.19

Site Specific Public Realm

Bramshott Lodge 18a South Bank

13/16724

3,870.11

Public Realm

Total

£

Category

26,569.27

Project Allocation: Community Parks Programme
The Community Parks Programme will run for three years and will deliver a wide range of capital
improvements to these natural assets across Kingston Borough (See Annex 1 for more details).
The overall capital funding programme was agreed at the RBK Council Meeting of February
2018. The Council’s capital funding contribution will be matched by external grant funding from a
number of funding bodies and Section 106 contributions where appropriate. This will increase the
capacity and number of projects which can be realised and add significant value to the
programme, thereby enhancing community benefit and reach.
The following key objectives and opportunities have been identified:
●
Improvement of the Borough’s parks and green spaces to provide widespread
multi-generational community benefits.
●
Match funding of RBK capital and grant funding from external providers, e.g. London
Marathon Trust, Big Lottery.
●
Physical improvements to facilities and features within 15 parks and green space sites
including play areas, exercise equipment, buildings, footpaths and accessibility.
●
Increased community engagement and direct involvement with the design, management
and maintenance of parks and greenspace.
The allocation of £208,823.24 S106 contributions, was agreed at the Corporate Resources Panel
on 15 October 2018 from the planning applications listed below:

S106 planning contributions allocated to the Community Parks Programme
Site address

Planning Neighbourhood
Ref

HM Resettlement prison, Latchmere
House, Ham, Richmond

14/12144 Kingston Town

£

Category

12,985.59 Leisure

64-67 & 76 Cambridge Road Kingston 14/13010 Kingston Town

68,347.29 Public Open Space

117 London Road

13/12622 Kingston Town

15,981.69 Public Open Space

36-38 Beaufort Lodge

13/12967 Kingston Town

11,570.78 Public Open Space

90-92 (Everyday store) Willoughby
Road

12/12732 Kingston Town

1,872.81

Public Open Space

L/A 3 Coombe Lane West

13/14121 Kingston Town

6,616.73

Public Open Space

28 Gibbon Road

14/12870 Kingston Town

1,627.43

Public Open Space

Kingston Vale Service station 1A
Robin Hood Lane

14/14223 Maldens & Coombe

1 Ullswater Close SW15 3RF

12/14764 Maldens & Coombe

32,841.61 Public Open Space
3,335.68

Public Open Space

D8
28 Woodgate Avenue, Chessington

14/10040 South of The
Borough

1,849.86

Public Open Space

Scout Hall, 62 Hartfield Rd,
Chessington

13/10358 South of The
Borough

1,111.66

Public Open Space

28-30 Castle St

12/12589 Kingston Town

4,118.96

Public Open Space

117 London Road

13/12622 Kingston Town

8,100.00

Public Open Space

295 Richmond Road

13/12422 Kingston

3,333.02

Public Open Space

Rooms 1&3 Clattern House

14/13062 Kingston

1,329.01

Public Open Space

Bramshott Lodge, 18A South Bank

13/16724 Surbiton

4,064.83

Leisure

22-30 Gala Bingo Hall, Richmond Rd

13/13017 Kingston

29,736.29 Public Realm

Total

208,823.24

The Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy
12. The Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy came into force in April 2012 and is
charged by the Mayor of London to contribute to the funding of Crossrail. The Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames, acting as collecting authority on behalf of the
Mayor, collected £85,590.71 between 1 April to 30 September 2018.
13. The Council can retain a proportion (4%) of the Mayoral CIL collected to cover
administration charges. This equates to £3,423.63 for this period. Administration
income can be spent on items such as the ongoing functions like establishing and
running billing and payment systems, enforcing the levy, the legal costs associated
with payments in-kind, and monitoring and reporting on levy activity. Any surplus
income must be returned to TfL. The Council has incurred costs associated with
administering the Mayor’s CIL above that retained as administration income.
Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy
14. The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames CIL was introduced on the 1st of
November 2015. Table 5 below details the total Kingston CIL income received
during the period 1 April to 30 September 2018. Table 6 provides the CIL cash
receipts running total as of 30 September 2018.
Table 5: Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy Income 1 April to 30 September
2018
Planning
Reference

Kingston
Town

Maldens &
Coombe

Surbiton

14/16954

0

0

£39875

0

15/12373

£4,230.77

0

0

0

15/14737

0

£27,700

0

0

16/12749

£5,775

0

0

0

17/14124

0

£76,230

0

0

17/16052

0

0

£7,150

0

17/16971

0

0

£9,859.50

0

£10,005.77

£103,930

£56,884.50

0

Total

South of the Borough Total
Borough

£170,820.27

D9
Table 6: Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy cash receipts running total as of
30 September 2018
Income Type

Kingston
Town

Maldens &
Coombe

Surbiton

South of the
Borough

Borough
Total

Neighbourhood
Portion

£77,398.36

£43,229.91

£60,086.18

£14,084.05

£194,798.49

Strategic

£412,791.25

£230,559.54

£320,459.62

£75,114.95

£1,038,925.36

Admin
Total

£64,932.83
£1,298,656.68

15. CIL is broken down into three distinct sections for allocation; the neighbourhood
portion, the strategic portion and the administrative portion. The neighbourhood
portion (15% of CIL receipts) is to be allocated for spend on infrastructure priorities
at a neighbourhood level within the neighbourhood in which the CIL receipt was
raised by development. The strategic portion (80% for CIL receipts) is to be
allocated for spend on strategic infrastructure priorities across the borough. The
administrative portion (5% of CIL receipts) is used to fund the set-up and
administration costs of operating a Community Infrastructure Levy.
Resource Implications
16. CIL and S106 planning obligations are collected by the Council and ring-fenced
within specific budgets to be spent on appropriate infrastructure projects. Individual
allocations are set out in Table 4.
Legal Implications
17. Planning obligations are secured in legal agreements executed under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), which are registered as
Local Land Charges. The Community Infrastructure Levy was introduced under The
Planning Act 2008 and is a discretionary charge that councils can levy on
development in their area.
18. The S106 funds referred to in this report have been received by the Royal Borough
of Kingston upon Thames and are available to be spent in the manner agreed by
Committee, in accordance with the planning agreements.
Risk Assessment
19. This report addresses any risk associated with not monitoring planning obligations,
which would have legal implications and risk of losing the funding. A transparent
and comprehensive framework for monitoring such obligations is vital to minimise
the risk.
20. Without adequate coordination commuted sums could be spent on inappropriate
schemes and not on priorities identified within the Council’s various plans and
strategies.
21. Without an adequate and coordinated system for monitoring S106 obligations and
any subsequent commuted sums it is possible that should deadlines expire,

D10
commuted sums would have to be returned (plus interest) to the developers and
required community facilities / affordable housing would not be provided.

22. Legal restrictions are in place in planning agreements which set out how financial
contributions can be spent. There is a risk that insufficient appropriate funds are
available to allocate to projects. In allocating funds the Council must have
appropriate mechanisms in place to ensure transparency. The allocations made at
this Committee are supported by records in relation to appropriate spend.
Equalities Impact Assessment
23. Monies collected within this process, and distributed, will ensure that it is compliant
with the equality legislation and the public sector equality duty to ensure we work
towards eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and fostering
good relations. An initial Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken and if
necessary, a full impact assessment will be undertaken.
24. The funding allocations for the projects set out in Table 4 of this report will have a
positive impact for individuals. Projects will improve public open spaces, increasing
accessibility and opportunity for all members of the community.
Health Implications
25. Planning obligations are sought towards infrastructure, including health and social
care. CIL and S106 contributions can be used to provide new and improved health
facilities, including mental health facilities, across the borough.
Road Network Implications
26. Planning obligations are sought towards transport infrastructure, including
improvements to the Borough’s road network. All modes of transport that utilise the
road network can benefit from CIL and S106 contributions.
Environmental and Air Quality Implications
27. S106 planning obligations and CIL secure financial contributions, some of which are
used to fund a range of environmental improvements. Planning obligations enable
the Council to secure environmental benefits from development that can contribute
to local environmental improvements and reduce any adverse environmental
effects, subject to meeting the statutory tests.
Background papers
None
Author of report - Lisa Fairmaner, Corporate Head of Planning lisa.fairmaner@kingston.gov.uk , 020 8547 4706

D11

Annex 1: Community Parks Programme
The table below presents the projects to be funded from S106 contributions as part
of the Community Parks Programme, as detailed at Table 4 of this report. This is an
indicative list of projects, and Ward Members will be consulted on the development
of each project.
The Section 106 funds will be used to add value to Council capital expenditure by
providing an element of match funding and extending what can be achieved for
community benefit. There is also the intention to apply for external grant funding to
the value of £200,000 during financial year 2019/2020, which subject to the bids
being successful will be in addition to the project budget to further extend the value
of the programme.
A number of parks where projects are planned already have existing Friends of
Parks groups and they will be directly involved with the development of projects from
the outset. This will be in addition to standard community engagement processes to
increase community involvement irrespective of whether there are existing groups or
not within a project area.
The total projected expenditure for the Community Parks Programme is £1.7m of
which £1.3m is derived from council capital, £208k from Section 106 receipts and
£200k from external grant funding.
CAPITAL BUDGET PROPOSAL - COMMUNITY PARKS PROJECT - Financial Years 2018 - 2022
No PROJECT

WARD

1 Beverley
Park, Park
View

Beverley

3 King
Edwards,
Kelvin
Grove

Tolworth
& Hook
Rise

AREA

COUNCILLORS DESCRIPTION

Maldens Mark James
&
DURRANT, LD,
Coombe Jaesung HA,
LD, Lesley Anne
HEAP, LD
2 Churchfields Chessingt South of Patricia
, Compton on South Borough BAMFORD, LD,
Crescent
Andreas
KIRSCH,LD,
Christine
Elizabeth
STUART, LD

South of Lorraine
Borough DUNSTONE,
LD, Dennis
Graham
GOODSHIP,
LD, Thay
THAYALAN, LD

TIME
SCALE

Major refurbishment and renewal of
Yr 1
children's play provision. There is a level
of community interest in supporting
improvements and suggestions that they
would assist with fundraising.
Major refurbishment of play area and to
Yr 2/ 3
develop and promote interactive physical
activity features including a football wall.
It is considered that this site is an ideal
location for this area of the Borough as it
has a wide population catchment, good
car parking facilities and is not close to
residences which could be disturbed by
the activities.
This project will enhance the junior play
Yr 2
area and create a more extensive active
recreation offer for older children
including more challenging equipment.

D12

4 King
Tolworth
Georges
& Hook
Skate Park, Rise
Jubilee Way

South of Lorraine
Borough DUNSTONE,
LD, Dennis
Graham
GOODSHIP,
LD, Thay
THAYALAN, LD
5 Knollmead, Alexandra Surbiton Mark BENYON
Southwood
,LD, Sam
Drive
FOULDER-HUG
HES, LD,
Sharron
FALCHIKOV-S
UMNER, I
6 Manor Park, St James Maldens Tim COBBETT,
Malden
&
LD, Simon
Road
Coombe EDWARDS, LD,
Annette
WOOKEY, LD

This facility was installed to an innovative
design 10 years ago, now the timber
infrastructure throughout the site is
deteriorating and needs to be replaced if
the site is to continue to meet health and
safety standards and remain open.

Yr 1

The play equipment and the
infrastructure of the site needs to be
upgraded to meet the needs of the local
community, particularly to ensure that a
wider range of age groups are catered
for and that the play value of the site is
improved.
Site has had limited investment in recent
years and the whole site needs to be
modernised and upgraded with new
equipment,

Yr 2

The development of improved
accessibility through the provision of a
surfaced footpath to enhance this
important linear open space within the
Hogsmill River corridor.

Yr 2

Yr 2

FOOTPATHS & INFRASTRUCTURE
7 Elmbridge
Meadows,
Elmbridge
Avenue

8 Latchmere
Recreation
Ground,
Latchmere
Road

Berryland Surbiton Sushila
s
ABRAHAM, LD,
Anita Margaret
SCHAPER, LD,
John Sweeney,
LD
Tudor
Kingston David Henry
Town
CUNNINGHAM,
C, Katrina Mary
LIDBETTER,
LD, Maria
NETLEY, C

9 Victoria
Recreation
Ground,
Balaclava
Road

St Marks

10 The Wood,
Oakhill

Surbiton
Hill

This project will enhance and add value
Yr 1
to the recently completed project to
improve and extend the play area within
the site. This project will resurface the
central footpath and site entrances to
improve accessibility and connectivity
within the core areas of the park. Self
closing gates will be installed to improve
site safety and security.
Surbiton Liz GREEN, LD, A surfaced footpath will be provided to
Yr 1/2
Diane WHITE, replace the unsurfaced desire line which
LD, Yogan
cuts through the site, the footpath will be
YOGANATHAN, designed to create coherent circulation to
LD
the features within the parks and improve
accessibility and readability.
Improvements will also be made to the
playground to make it more natural in
appearance and provide shade.
Surbiton Hilary
This initiative will complement the
Yr 1
GANDER, LD, recently improved footpath by improving
Alison HOLT,
the current access to the site from
LD, Malcolm
Oakhill Grove by reducing the steep
SELF, LD
slope and putting in a stepped gradient.

D13

11 Tree
Planting

Various

Various

This project will target parks and
Yr 1-3
greenspaces which are currently
deficient in tree cover. Priority will be
given to providing shade trees within
children's play areas and popular seating
areas.

EQUIPMENT - SEATING & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
12 The Fairfield Grove

Kingston Fiona Russell
Town
BOULT, LD,
Rebekah Jane
MOLL, LD, Jon
TOLLEY, LD

13 Benches &
Seating

Various

Various

The existing gym equipment within this
Yr 2
heavily used and popular site is reaching
the end of its usable life, this project will
completely renew and upgrade the
physical recreation equipment to meet a
range of fitness levels to encourage
wider use.
Replacement and renewal of poor quality Yr 1-3
benches within parks and greenspaces.
Installation of new seating in areas of
proven demand.

PROJECT FEASIBILITY & DEVELOPMENT
14 King
Tolworth
Georges
& Hook
Community Rise
Trust,
Jubilee Way

15 Fishponds,
King
Charles
Road

South of Lorraine
Borough DUNSTONE,
LD, Dennis
Graham
GOODSHIP,
LD, Thay
THAYALAN, LD

Berryland Surbiton Sushila
s
ABRAHAM, LD,
Anita Margaret
SCHAPER, LD,
John Sweeney,
LD
16 Canbury
Tudor
Kingston David Henry
Gardens,
Town
CUNNINGHAM,
Lower Ham
C, Katrina Mary
Road
LIDBETTER,
LD, Maria
NETLEY, C

This funding will cover the project
development costs, feasibility studies
and design of the proposed community
building to RIBA stage C/D. The intention
would be to use the draft design to seek
grant funding and business support for
the initiative. (Provisional project subject
to final agreement)
This funding will be used to develop a bid
to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF), to
permit a full restoration and improvement
of the park. Generally if successful the
HLF will fund up to 90% of the project
costs.
This funding will be used to develop bids
to grant funding programmes. The grant
funding would be used to match fund the
allocation of Section 106 receipts to the
site. Generally if successful the HLF will
fund up to 90% of the project costs, other
funders 50% approximately.

Yr 1

Yr 2

Yr 2

D14

17 Park
Buildings

Various

Various

This project will prepare asset
management options for the reuse and
reprovisioning of park buildings with
priority given to buildings which can be
converted to more positive uses which
generate external income and reduce
costs to the Council.

Yr 1-2

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

E1

Document is Restricted

Appendix E

